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3gIs3il aifti AR JTRIFdoEl ATATGA STOIBRY

Q. Tuq faeaur wfausr ®RET aE@dt (COVID-19) WeTHRI SuTear T8 hiqusl 91 97 AT
J=F AMGHHT HRU AT YHRATE I HETH ARATH qIT [F==0reht o1 fafae IHaar S qua
ST GEIAT ATIGUSEweR] UETHT GIAAT T TRTSH Frara TRTeehT qIRTETHT SFebel Frameor qor &t
foreTy Z@reey Y& AIIIUE qTaT THaq AUHlel AR AT faear Areaw / fafedr #+6= (Online
Meeting) AR T AT GAHET AR foae AfeheT =a=an fAemgua! ga1 SoReHl HeTHraesars [
HreH / fafedt Feh=ael ATeHaETe FArET AT fag RET 9Ed (COVID-19) HeTH RIS Sfaddre =1
JAT T3 FEY FRT G |

3. AR FHTAT f9f€aT F=h= (Online Meeting) AThd IUMEAd & =T SARGAT HeTTHIdesd AT
AT FATAT g 9= FEIA] ¥5 gUe ATl ATRAT GR=IT7, fSFITe @rar § qam oy el a7
FEraled A q97 AR AETHT F¥9e e a1 SHA ST hblagm@himalayanbank.com AT &7 fa@or
TSI AT Sehebl JTATSHT TS BIRH ST HRTSH ARG B | TG TEF T g TARaT TeTTATIeTS
Meeting Link/Passcode ITded TRTs THTHT FEHTT & a<dl fHaTe 3 |

3. QAT 9F EANRRT q gUar Frerene fqfedl ®=h= (Online Meeting) el XA & | Sth | €Ul FHY
[ F9THT SRRgAEsd [a5U®l Meeting Link/Passcode @0 #1eg#are Online Login T 9T Iufeafdq
T B | T UH JUNATAATs 9T T TIAHT IURIT 9T ATAR AT fag7g | el gureafqare
FFIA] U] AT THITH FATHT AT AT TIRE F&T IRT FT I THTH HRATE! ATST

(‘E a l

¥, qUTA WRERB! FMTd AIq AT FAT FoaTAT T AUHA ANBTR T FFA] ATIZ0S I
MRfaE ARGAH AT [ =g T |

Y. STIRYNT WETHTaE%eh! ATAHIIHT TN Sehebl AT ATTeh (qaRor 78 GerwraT TehIfeTe TRTH 3 | Afered
e faareor SRTICTRT ATt ATERORTATAT 997 g I#q91 J&dTae® sl Website: www.himalayanbank.com
| 9T B Flhs |

%, WTIRUAAT TAT ATAILT FATSIAHT AT fAfd 2009/0% /9% a0 3@ Mfd 3088,/ 0% /30 ITq T¥F7 RRYHT
Tt AT AT @A B | AU Lh TR [AHESHT fq 3009,0%, /93 AR FRER 9E FIATER
IR ATHART AUH SRRGAESA JI TR AT AN (o1 9799 g8 |

9. I SATHFRIB] AN SehebT Frald HATAT, FHATLT, FISHUSIHT FTATAT THITT THP TCT g AT
el
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oA s fafregsr
AZTTHT ATMIF ATEMTUT AHTETY F=AT

2089 A T [EAT I T TR FATAF ATATHT T3 F 324 BT (FMUATEAR TG Fbeb! Agrgdl At ararer gar 46 A,
W?maﬁw&ﬁimﬁmﬁwmmmﬁﬁwqmmmanm&wwra—ﬁ%ﬁwa—rﬁ
HETAHTIE%eTs ATAHIHT T3TgT AR A9 G |

IgTEHT qTiti rem<or W a6 fafy, awg T em

q) fafg : R0 AT TT 6 T HHAR (FIAAR AT 99, R039)

) FHT e Q00 &

3 W fewresy g fafwas® Fa FrEarad, FHArd, FeATSETe fafedr ®RR= (Virtual/Online) WThd T T=Te &g, |

(@RI FATHT fafedl F=h=g AThd F@9rl g7 Srarde Herawraegsars Meeting Link/Passcode Suaeg s
T TRTH G )

TARAHRT famT-get
%F) T J&=E

) AZrSEl AN FTARO TATHT AT FeTeler FATTHT Fiaae,

) AGTIERE! Gfaasd afed 000 A AAR TATAER! ATTATd, Glel THITHT THT AT, 0% /90 FT ATHRI-AETT fedrea
qIT TEYATE [qaRor Gedwe TR 9w 1,

3) TH SFH FEAF FEIA! GHTAAT IS [ B AT 008 /08 FT faaia (qaRer feas! T faaa fqaror e T,

¥) Fara® qiaftad fawifeer IRaAifsa ArRTHE arg®wic a1 FHmT IS0 5. %,393%,59,¥35 /- H & (F) gfqud
(T Afed) o g7 ST & US,33,38,55% /- G AT faT y=ara SR T,

W) FHEIAT TA, R0%3 FI THE 999 AR ATEF a9 3090/ g HT AT sr@raiias g T T e aifesfas drea |

@) a9y e

q) ST AR IO ¥ 4R,00,00,00,000 /- (ALY e A FAN) AT qhg T 5. 94,00,00,00,000 /- (FLAT T7d A #9241
AT Tl [T g&drd Sk T |

R) FEATEF GrATTEr (wRTieeT TXAHISTH Sl ST ¥ &l =Iehl Isi & %,39,3%,59,¥35 /- a1 dfg T =<hT I 9% (3He)
gfqerad g ST %, 9,39,39,9%,%¥00 /- aMd 1Y SN T qeeedl (909 g% @ied 19 |

3) Feber AMIF TT 0% /99 AT FRIWTA ATAINE IALENAcT Fge T HHAT AT AT J&T9 T&] HFIAT T 053 &l
THT 0% I JUSHT 4 HT UG (1) o [0 TXepr ATHT AwaT AT TLHT AN STRAIA AU YRBRebT BRIAT AT JNTATH,
= qur IU=R Fvafed fafa= 99 deaEedrs 93 TWHl &9 THH AT ¥ 3% .90 95%.¥9 ATHGT T | (HFITIT
FTATNAF IALEITT AT @ TUHI TFHEEH! (qeqd [qazuegs dFF 5 A afdF gfqaqTdr geg TRIH 3 1)

¥) feareram % fafwaes SUaT qawT SUAH SF J91 fa<ig FEATeT A AT WA a7 Wi T JIIh SREUHT A9 e
A FAT THA, SAepepl AT TAT T FRIAREEH] HeATgH T AIIAT I MG TAT A=ANLT HeATFAHATATS 7h
LY AT, MO AT G TR AN ATAIAF T FERIATES T AT A, T AT Wi T a9 O GEer IeRar a1
TH "ATAF FATTATS ATGTAT JIH T |

Y) Sehepl YT ¥ IETEEET Femee T (9 g% 91 T a9 qZqiiad GaTAr U AL Ak AT AT (HFIT Beaaed

AT ATIITF AT T GoTAb GIAITATS a7 oAb ATl dlebebl TRTARTIATS ARTHBR fa,

M) fafaa

EIECan]
Q) fafq Rove arer di Afer ¥ T 2fE 2000 A GW AfeTT 9 TA T AR @A @RS AR T B ATEN RE, |

o ~

) SERYAT HETAHIAEEeTS dehehl STARET TRIAHT FIAH Teehl ST AT giqaed, YEmad Ja=aqa 7 fammaeieT deiee afede

ferar qarET g |

FIEAT AEHTEAEEATS AR .

() Sl ATHAT SARIATEEeTs AT HISATd & Y00/~ (JI= TF) AT RGN Tod @Il @lewl AawdT Tl B, | TG @il @l
SARGATEER] ATHILT THH Ioh WIATAT STFAT TR |

(@) AT R09Y /%% T AT =T SR AT TAT A AR ATAT HUHT TRRIARES (eI FMIed o, SHASE [ g7 Ard
A

ToATeAd TR ATSITA

s

fafrm aren
(FFAT i)
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JaeIIAET THT % () F &
3 3T T e T (R
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R VTHR afgF FFIT 1.
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- T A A - AT A A FER afeg FFT 1. foT.
- orefl FIeT AT, AtAEaeer - o7 9reft IV AT, AtqEIaer Fifragad 0.2 gfqaud
- THR w1 U A, Eteaay - AR g9 &Y Tk TR = Famer
- A feg A WA gHeEars fats wEe qaw
- #f\dr 3 e wfges faerrs wF oF
TUHTA 1)
frrmrEst gaams faiw yemE:
fermm s P CICKIBE HAMEA T a9 FHTLOT

fmw 3.(@) : SFa afuwa G siw ¥ fafa
THTCRT IO §ET
(%) SFEFT AfgwEa g T q3,00,00,00,000// -

o 3.(@) : Sy srfirera i s ¥l
IOY Heu:
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(3) THE FAFTE ARTETPT TaTAl TR AUH GG | (3) THE FEFNE ARTETPT TaTANT AR ATRT g5 | T U6 TbbT fAEfararr
? fAteRt qaiaie &1 ae | T gefed S qar faxig Fe O (@nfean) qor | aHiTs T O AU
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faw 3 @ ®1 IUCFH () T (F) AT AATHIOT AR

IR THE “F” A=AIAHT TAATATRES AR

[T SR F=fe@ T T Ik IR @RE T

HTAR FHE “F’ AR GATTHA ATRAT AT

Tewel TART ST O (5F) AT
fraATadEr fAaw 3% «@rg
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FEATIH THE “F” A A GAT 6l STTHEH
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197 @f¥g T gegH WUHT Ik SR ggE 99
FFIAEST aRER GRE TH qa X ao] T |
FIFSTAT TG aR[A? @RS T G TATAT

ST FHEH! (R 21 AEl THEH RdAEEdTs (6
T | A AR T T GRSl SaRde
9797 @ivg T ATEAT AT gIR0T TR TTITH]
FATTAHT fATTOr T IAG | A GHERT FA 9
FEITIEF STATIAIS 9TI% T ey AV IeAT | Il
R =TT ATATRT (MUeEITy o+ =afh, &,

FeR fewdr amrE Ardr @A ATTHT qAT TSI
HRATIFEE Wl AT ToFNUH FFATATS [l T
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At 287 TEHN TAAT Fafa@d TIE, |

FEAT a7 FEATATS (bl T Fiba, |
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Y faeaaT hidquesT AT Argzgsl (COVID-19) HETHT TITTHT THT hidUeh]

JgT Al HETARIBT I=A SAM@HET BRI I AXHRATE Ih HelHK AHATH q4T
Fg=oTeRT 1T [T FHIAT ST AURT T ool ATIEUSesehl TUETHT arefT
T TRISA Grard TRREehT TRTLTHT Sehel TRV GAT TET fq9TT T@ree JIa "Iy
OTAAT THIA Ul AR |47 fazeira |regw / fafedr #7569 (Online Meeting)
HIhd A 9T AT AT [ Al e Hargua! ga1 SRl HelTHIag oS
tagera Areaw/ fafeal ®9>=a®l ATAFATE GATHT 91T fag HIAAT AT
(COVID-19) HETHTIH! SATEHATE = 91 I=13+ qray d g 3 |

IR FATHT f9feaT &R~ (Online Meeting) HThd IIEAT g =ATed TARIAT
HETHTAE S AR FHTHI FATAT g F=al HRIAT ¥ gual el H+ [qavues
THA AT hblagm@himalayanbank.com AT 9STSH a7 S HHl IIITEE
(www.himalayanbank.com) AT J9de ®RA W I¥RIST ARE B | T T8I T
g IRYAT HeT ATddTs Meeting Link/Passcode STaed TRTE AHTHT TRl g+
T THeTET B |

QTR ATH:

ARIH] AATIT:

TIRYHTU F a7 fHITe @rar =

ROl TRl AT HE&T:

= '__r

SHA ST
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TSI A AN JTENUT HATHT ATl
Jdicich AfAfID! Ufddcal

ARYHAT HETTHTIRS,
ferTerae o fAatHag®l Agredl aritie AR ATHT HT A1 e F=Teleh AHITH qhare Telasdrs alad
@R T3, |

favrer srgres avshy fewreras 9@ Fefessd! Savd FaTdT W B | AT TATIH eTHIA FehelTs Heldherl [
EPTHT Ueh TRIET, FTATa=T 97 SRl Sehebl TTHT T TWIST Th TTH |

fereaeardy sqAr Bfau®r FRAT TEIH (FITE—9) BT 297 SqrerdT 9fF Tq == wfgar 2fig fauer qor orae
frecaTuerr Sif@H q9T AITAT AF LI AGTHT BRO AIF 99 095 /99 [EHIATT o arad 9
Sfeps SRt ATNT AT TEdT | a9 ATideh a9 T a9 &l JeATeoeh AREH! qAT BRMAT ATGREA THT
HITAHT G TRET [afad B | T HeTHTIA ALTAHT TATTHT SFBTHT RV TH Sehebl ol gaTe, e
G, (TS HUPT A, FHTATNRT (b T TR [TEARAT O T&T AGRT AHT Sebebl ATAHT SNGURT
B | TEEH AT FE FOEEH] THET G I9 AHRHT SILAT T GLHT HRU ATRTHT Fel FAET T TTHT
AT FBTET THE e =8y | AT A AT aANhd Foeaeb] AFATH AN AGH TATH AT @bl =
A AT ATHTAT GPRTcHE dET T AT T B |

BT, el IATARHT &5 WM T 935 U TH. 91 UEhATs JaT TATS EH 3 | AT T FUING FATATHT
ATTHT S [eqq FHTTT GoAFTTET TATHT FIATATAT TEE Sebebl TETUF FHIAT [GHATT FTTed fdfiqes

qf FRAAIah ATE afeTadl SITHERT RIS ISl Gl AR B |

UTETETR STFITTRT T 9T, SARUTEEHT TAT-TRTe] TedRT ¥ e AARATIAHT HSTHIcHeE fpamefieararara
el fAveaR gl TS seRee fafad @ | @R Sfhy U [ ¥ SHATE e Jar TR G s
AL el STHHT AVING T ATIRVT TRIEHT G | AGHT AT T9 a9 favadR IRGUebT HIETHIIHT FRIT THIH
HET @R Sfeby FaTHT FET AR /el e A T Sl fafa ameres Sy Far-Afaemessr gamT
ATE THT AT A YATEs TANT T ATHT JTehesars Jcdred e AU 3 |

T GATHAT 008 IATA AYR FATAHT ATAATT, ATTE a9 09% /99 FI ATRI-AMFITH [&qra, ATHT-ATHT
FShHic TAT A [FaRIET ATHEAH AN TEqd T4, |

FIOSTTRT FHIET:
T erafaAr AT sfaedr ausr qaarEr 9§ 0 gfqerad gig 9% % 9 @9 39 q9 o FRAS 3 AG TR
B | FoAl ATIE R Y, FqAS T Tg & § @ 9 A %, TS ¥ A TR G |

T AT AATIHT Shebl el THT 99,009 YIqTT T GT THAM .28 Frqerder Tg T FHAMT & q @I YUY
qT 5 IS ¥R A@ T F 40 AT U5 FRIS 43 A9 [ B |

fraaaery fHera T9Td A0 T TAT TIA ATEE THIG=~E ALATATE ST (HS9TThT AT=THT &7 FoATierd
AT AT FHTEAT aUHT bl €. 3 9T ¥ FRS % A FaATad TATRT AT T RS TR
B HT T R A U5 FE &9 AT GE HATHT Ao T G |
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AT AR AT Aigell THITGRTFAERT Sepepl faeiir feafq MR 3 |
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T AT (AT AUEEHT AT@d HUH FAEE & & FS ¥¥ A 4 B9 ATl TH Ahd AUH B | ATq@T
TRURT AR ATE A7 [AfcET FATR! AGADT AT THT Seb AATATIAA TATHHATHT AT H=AR HITE
TRREHT =T AT ATHN ATRTHT FEANT [ (G99 fadrs =Areve) |

T forefr et (%, TG
w9, HILED R0y /0% 0% /9 afg/ (7m)

JAT AT AT HATA gferera
9. FHA A 9,233,949 q,44,55,%% q9.09
R gz qH 94,%%,%¥5 945,43 ].RV
2. GBI 9,43,0%,00 1,34,5%,0% q%.%0
¥ | e, Afafaey T @iE q9r fwrraue %5,30,%3 4,093, ¥5 2.4

e e

Y | g% =S AT ¥,0393 ¥,5399 -¥.99
% A AT 9,%%,04 q,9%,3% S|
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TftgT qon sravifed nfdw fpardeT T a@ee SHeg TR guTE:

forra q o 2fE faea wiv Rfauer FRAT (FIfTE—92) ARTHAT ST FROT U fqeaewr oids, qarfaes qar
a= PRATFATIET Hfe THAF AT T G AUHT a0 | faeasr 9 qedesd qUi a1 A1t awaraar
AT HETARIATS A=A T Y19 1Y | FIT A7 T eTel aie fofer iaar g © wie vl Jel Sadeinrs
AT THTCRT B | TAH! FRU (99 ATTHT THRIHAF GG R BTeAT U (999 qdder gva iaar
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A FFRIHF TAE TR =T STAT AT Jig TUHT 2fawg | TFF1 19 ffeet ¥ A fo=repr srefoa samafee
Fad TE (999 AGTAAT THRIAE AT W fawg; | 00 el T ARTAT PRIAT (HIITE-9R) 7"
FRT § TS ATGTATg ATNTHDHIA T (I THA TAT &TAT TraTaval ATAe bl TALATHT TLThl ATTAH]
qYhT THRICHE THATACT THET TRIET FTHT TITeAehl ATTAAT AGR ULehl I1gws; | THTET TOHT J9TAT AT
ATEITAT T AHAHTA AT HUAT G fa9d FoT AT TTAT BiAUhT HIAE—92 HETHRT a9r o= fafw=
SARACTAHT FRIA AF g 3 T TEH Tl | TGS AT FIPT AGAT, GHHT (A e Ffe
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HBL's History

Established as a joint venture of Habib Bank Limited of Pakistan in 1993, Himalayan Bank Limited (HBL) has
been in the forefront of the Nepal’s banking industry since its inception. Starting banking services from the
Employees Provident Fund Building at Thamel, Kathmandu, HBL currently has countrywide network of 68
branches and 138 ATMSs to provide highly reliable modern banking services to its customers across Nepal.

Our Vision

Himalayan Bank Limited holds a vision to become a Leading Bank of the country by providing premium
products and services to its customers, thus ensuring attractive and substantial returns to the stakeholders
of the Bank.

Our Mission

The Bank’s mission is to become preferred provider of quality financial services in the country. There are two
components in the mission of the Bank; Preferred Provider and Quality Financial Services; therefore we at
HBL believe that the mission will be accomplished only by satisfying these two important components with
the Customer at focus. The Bank always strives positioning itself in the hearts and minds of the customers.

Objective

To become the Bank of first choice is the main objective of the Bank.



Board of Directors

Tulasi Prasad Gautam Faisal N Lalani Prachanda Bahadur Shrestha
CHAIRMAN Director Director
Representing Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Representing Habib Bank Ltd. Representing N. Trading Company Pvt. Ltd.

Sunil Bahadur Thapa Ashish Sharma Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director Director Director
Representing Ava International Pvt. Ltd. Representing Mutual Trading Pvt. Ltd. Elected from General Public Shareholders

Radha Krishna Pote Himalaya SJB Rana
Independent Director Chief Advisor (Board of Directors)
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Message from the Chairman

On the auspicious eve of celebrating 28th AGM of Himalayan Bank Limited, | feel very proud to express that
our bank has maintained the status as one of the pioneer banks of Nepal. For this, on behalf of the Board, |
would like to congratulate our bank management team and all the staff, our valued customers and other
stakeholders for their continuous contribution to this 28 years of glorious journey.

HBL holds a promising history in the banking industry of Nepal. It is the first bank to introduce ATM, Tele-
banking service and CBS System in the country. Today, it has Rs. 155.89 billion of asset size, Rs. 131.86
billions of deposit and Rs. 107.29 billions of loan and investments with total of 629, 648 customers. These
figure recognize us to secure a prominent position in Nepali banking industry. The bank has always been able
to provide the best and innovative products to our customers, both in terms of deposit and loan schemes. With
a dedicated team, we shall continue to deliver satisfaction to our customers as per their aspirations. At the same
time, we have proved ourselves as a prominent partner in the course of economic development of the country
by availing investable funds to various sectors.

With all these achievements, this year has been more challenging than ever. The world has withnessed an
unpredicted downfall in the overall economy due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic which started from
December 2019 and remain till date. Since then, the roller coaster ride has been set on pause in all the sectors
including banking and finance, production, manufacturing, tourism and aviation, trading, marketing and so on.
Still there is not a reliable sign of getting control over it in near future even though the scientists around the
world are working hard to develop vaccine to control it. Since the economic activities of Nepal too have been
adversely affected, the performance of the banks also has been significantly hit by the pandemic.

In current scenario, where the threat of COVID-19 has been hovering over us constantly, there is also an
opportunity for the bankers to explore new avenues and one of them is to promote secure and risk-free banking.
The pandemic has given a good lesson to the overall financial industry about the significance of cashless
technology. During the lockdown phase, realizing the need of digital banking more than before, we concentrated
on upgrading our Mobile Banking Application and Internet Banking Services, giving high priority to our customers'
safety and convenience. HBL strives to offer better banking experience to our valued clients with easy and
secured access to banking services. Besides this, HBL strongly adheres to the regulatory compliance by
incorporating better policies, practices and right corporate governance in order to manage growth and
development of the Bank and meet stakeholders' aspirations.

Despite of all adversities, | am delighted to state that we are able to maintain satisfactory growth in finances
and improve service quality. On behalf of HBL, | extend the vote of thanks to all our stakeholders for their trust
and continuous support to the bank.

Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Chairman
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From the desk of CEO

It is the 28th year of Himalayan Bank and we have completed one more year with an outstanding performance
of service excellence, portfolio diversity and customer satisfaction. Despite the pandemic situation that the world
has been facing and the adversities faced by the economy and the financial system of the country, our balance
sheet has been able to exhibit a satisfactory growth.

As we can see, this year has been way tougher than we imagined. The Corona Virus that first emerged in
December 2019 became a pandemic the whole world has never seen. Many countries had to follow lockdowns
and quarantine situations. The whole year has been a new experiences for all of us. The Nepalese banking
industry was affected as it had to go under a 120 days lockdown starting from 24th March, 2020 to 21st July,
2020. During this time, only the essential services were in operation.

It is needless to explain how challenging the year has been for the banking industry. During the year, the volatility
in interest rates has been a major issue. The fluctuation of the interest rate has created uncertainty in the financial
market. Despite of the effects of a worldwide pandemic, we were able to record a net profit of Rs. 2.59 Billion
with a Total Deposit Base of Rs. 131.86 Billion, Total Lending of Rs. 107.29 Billion, Total Assets of Rs. 155.89
Billion and the Total Capital Base of Rs. 10.68 Billion. It is all because of the TRUST of our shareholders and
the customers that we have managed this growth.

Like in past years, in line with the Bank’s strategic plan and regulatory directives, we were focused on extending
our presence in various part of the country. Unfortunately, we could not fully implement our plan because of
the outbreak of the virus. However, we are still focused on giving the best services to our customers through
existing branches. Furthermore, looking at the current banking scenario, our bank has introduced various
schemes, products and facilities for the clients. During the nationwide lockdown, more people have understood
the short comings of traditional banking system and have realized how important it is to upgrade to digital and
modern banking. Thus, to give our customers the best services we have improved our IT and IT Security along
with other ancillary services such as Card Services, Mobile Banking, Internet Banking and Remittance. We have
been upgrading our Mobile Banking and Internet Banking services to make it more secure to promote e-
payments. Therefore, despite a worsening economy, the bank has taken it as opportunity to remain robust and
to position itself as a top tier bank among the Financial Institutions of the Country.

Apart from serving our valuable customers with best banking services, we have also focused equally on good
Corporate Governance practices and follow all the sets of parameters and Directives/Circulars of the Regulators
for better transparency and accountability. Similarly, we can proudly say that we are the main service provider
in remittance business which has helped us expand our reach. This helped us to grow our business and provide
effective and easy solutions to our customers apart from helping generate revenue along with strengthening
our foreign currency position. As in the past years, HBL continued focusing on enlarging the Retail and SME
Loans portfolio considering the huge potential at the local level.

Looking at our 28 years long journey, it gives me immense pleasure to say that HBL has been able to maintain
its legacy of being one of the most preferred Banks in Nepal which would not have been successful without
the continuous guidance and support of the Board of Directors. | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the Board of Directors. | would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff who have worked hard despite
the Covid situation, shareholders, well-wishers, Nepal Rastra Bank and other related government agencies who
have continuously interacted with us with their support and guidance.

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer
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Senior Management Team

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

Sushiel Joshi Anup Maskay Ujjal Raj Rajbhandary
General Manager General Manager General Manager

Rabindra Narayan Pradhan  Maheshwor Prasad Joshi Bipin Hada Bijay Man Nakarmi Mrigendra Pradhan
Assistant General Manager Assistant General Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Manager Chief Manager

=

Naveen Poudyal Satish Raj Joshi Sunil P Gorkhali Sisam Pradhananga Joshi  Jayendra Bikram Shah
Chief Manager Chief Manager Chief Manager Chief Manager Chief Manager
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Himgi";yan Bank Ltd.

Report of the Board of Directors
To the Twenty-Eighth Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we cordially welcome all the shareholders present at this Twenty-Eighth Annual General
Meeting of Himalayan Bank Limited.

The bank has been serving its valued customer continuously for the last 28 years. During these period, we, with our collective
efforts, are able to establish the Bank as one of the most secure, techno friendly and reliable banks among the financial
institutions of the Country.

The COVID-19 pandemic spread globally has affected Nepal since last Chaitra. The threats emerged among the people has
directly affected the economy of the country. Thus, the year 2019/20 had been tough and challenging year to the overall
financial institutions. Even though the FY: 2019/20 had not been astounding for the Financial Institutions of Nepal, it remained
fairly good for the Bank. As mentioned earlier, the pandemic as affected overall economy of the country resulted in negative
impact on credit disbursement, deposit solicitation, earnings related to remittance, human resource development, expansion
of services consequently affecting the income of the bank. Similarly, it is witnessed that some of the loan were degraded that
spawned the increased loan loss provisioning resulted in impact on profitability of the Bank. However, we are hopeful that
the profitability would increase in the current fiscal year as the Bank Management is working on to recover those classified
loans.

Presently, the Bank has been providing services to its customers from 68 branches and 138 ATM throughout the country.
Likewise, it is our pleasure to inform you that during the review period, fully owned subsidiary company of the Bank, "Himalayan
Capital Ltd." having its registered office at Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Building, Thamel, Kathmandu, has been doing good
business over the year.

The Bank has been continuously progressing with the deep faith of customers, direct and indirect support of the shareholders
and creative initiatives of the Bank Management. Since its inception, the Bank has been working in accordance to its aim of
developing healthy banking system as well as extending accessible and quality service to the people. Likewise, due to the
ongoing global pandemic, the Bank has been encouraging it's clients to use the digital platform (Internet/Mobile Banking)
extensively for getting quick and uninterrupted services.

We would like to present the Balance Sheet as on July 15, 2020, the Profit and Loss Account for the fiscal year 2019/20, the
Profit and Loss Appropriation Account and other financial statements for approval.

Review of the Bank's Operations

During the review period, the Bank's total deposit reached Rs. 131.86 billion, an increase of 16.60 percent compared to
previous year. Similarly, the loans and advances reached to Rs. 107.29 billion during the review period, an increment of 9.25
percent compared to previous year.

The net assets of the Bank increased by 9.97%, reaching Rs. 17.59 billion, during the review period, while the total assets
increased by 17.07 % and reaching to Rs. 155.88 billion.

Following the guideline of regulatory body, Nepal Rastra Bank and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, the Bank was
able to post an operating profit after provision for loan loss to the tune of NPR 3.41 billion during the fiscal year, with net profit
at NPR 2.59 billion.

The status of the Bank as on first quarter end of current fiscal year is presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S.N. Particulars As on July 15,2020 | As on Oct 17, 2020 Increase
(Decrease) %
1 Total Assets 155,885 161,282 3.46
2 Deposits (Including BFIs) 131,860 137,079 3.96
3 Loans, Overdrafts and Bills 107,295 104,776 -2.35

Purchased and Discounted

During the review period, pursuant to the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank, the Bank wrote off loans to the tune of Rs. 226.28
million whereas the Bank was able to recover Rs. 84.47 million from the already-written-off loans.
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The Bank Management has been firmly working to recover the non-performing, bad and written off loan. We would like to
assure you that this will help in enhancing profitability of the Bank in the current fiscal year.

Comparative Financial Indicators of the Bank

The comparative financial indicators of the fiscal years 2018/19 and 2019/20 are presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S. N. Particulars 2018/2019 2019/2020 Increase
As on July 16 As on July 15 (Decrease) %
1 Total Assets 133,151 155,885 17.07%
2 Net Assets 15,995 17,589 9.97%
3 Deposits 113,090 131,860 16.60%
4 Loans, Overdrafts and Bills Purchased 98,206 107,295 9.25%
and Discounted
5 Net Interest Income 5,031 4,822 -4.17%
6 Other Income 1,640 1,744 6.31%
7 Operating and Staff Expenses* 2,605 2,702 3.71%
8 Operating Profit 3,942 3,412 -13.46%
9 Net Profit 2,764 2,587 -6.41%

*Qperating and Staff Expenses includes Staff Bonus Expenses

The comparative status of deposit, credit, income and expenditure of the Bank during the fiscal year 2018-19 and the year
under review is presented in separate annexes as detailed below:

Deposit composition : Annex A
Credit composition : Annex B
Income composition : Annex C
Expenditure composition : Annex D

National and International Events and their Impact on the Bank

The world has witnessed deteriorating condition of economic, social and other activities brought about by the ongoing global
pandemic of COVID-19. Most of the country around the world have been trying to control the spread of the virus taking various
preventive measures such as partial or full lockdown. However, all those preventive measures are gone in vein as the virus
has affected more than 70 Million population worldwide killing more than 1.60 Million people. As a consequence, there is a
negative impact on world economy resulted in sluggish growth. Most of the developed countries having dominance over
world economy, particularly the United States of America, European countries, China and India, are finding it difficult to attain
the desire growth thereby the economic growth of the world, as a whole, has observed lethargic growth. Besides, the trade
war between USA and China has negative impact in the world economy. Similarly, our southern neighbour "India" is also
hardly hit by the pandemic with over 10 Million infected population thereby leading to full and or partial lockdown around
the country. This has resulted in the low growth rate of our southern neighbour which has direct/indirect impact on the
economic growth of Nepal.

On the other hand, in later quarter of the review period, the pandemic has affected Nepal thereby the country has failed to
attain the targeted growth rate even after the settlement of political uncertainty and end of transition period with the formation
of stable government. However, due to the hike in taxation, some of the policies declared by the government as well as spread
of COVID-19 and the uncertainty of the its vaccine have affected the investment environment in the country.

As per the report published by Nepal Rastra Bank, the country has attained anticipated GDP growth rate of only 2.28% during
2019/20, whilst the GDP growth rate in the previous year was 6.99%. The GDP growth rate remained at one of the lowest due
to the global pandemic and its negative effect on global and national economy that has disrupted production and smooth
supply chain. However, consumer's average inflation rate increased to 6.15% during the review period in comparison to last
year's 4.64%.
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Total exports, during the FY: 2019/20, have increased by only 0.6% to Rs. 97.71 billion in comparison to previous year's
increased rate of 19.4% . Similarly, the import decreased by 15.6% and remained at Rs. 1,196.80 billion in the review period
in comparison to last FY's increment rate of 13.9%. Marginal growth in export and sharp decline in import resulted in decrease
in trade deficit by 16.8% and remained at Rs. 1,099.09 billion in comparison to the growth of 13.5% in last FY's.

Similarly, deficit in current account has decreased by 87.9% and remained at Rs. 32.06 billion from previous year's Rs. 265.36
billion. The current account deficit in US Dollar value is recorded as Rs. 326 million in comparison to last year's Rs. 2.35 billion.

Likewise, the deficit in BOP by Rs. 67.40 billion during the previous FY has recorded surplus of Rs. 282.41 billion in the review
period. The BOP surplus in US Dollar has remained at 2.35 Billion in comparison to previous year's deficit of 591 million.

Additionally, inflow of remittance had declined slightly by 0.5% to Rs. 875.03 billion in the review period. In the corresponding
previous year, the remittance growth rate was 16.5%. In US Dollar, the inflow of remittance during the review period has
declined by 3.3% in comparison to previous year's growth by 7.8%

At the end of fiscal year 2019/20, the gross foreign exchange reserves have increased by 34.9% and remained at Rs. 1,401.84
billion compared to fiscal year end 2018/19 figure of Rs. 1,038.92 billion. In US Dollar value such reserve during the review
period has remained at Rs. 11.65 billion in comparison to previous corresponding year's figure of Rs. 9.50 billion.

The broad money supply during the review period increased by 18.1% as compared to last year's increment of 15.8%.

During the year under review, the total deposit in the banking sector increased by 18.7% compared to 18.00% in the previous
year. Similarly, the total loans and advances to private sector had increased by 12% in FY 2019/20 compared to 19.4% in the
previous year.

Current Financial and Banking Environment

The economy of the country is still dependent on remittance. However, demand of Nepalese work forces from various countries
are adversely affected by the spread of COVID-19 virus worldwide. During the FY: 2019/20, Nepali requesting for labour permit
(institutional, personal and authenticating the existing) had declined by 20.5%. In previous year it was declined by 32.6%.
Similarly, during the review period, Nepali requesting for renewal of work permit for foreign employment had declined by
34.7% which was increased by 5.4% during the correspondence previous year. Therefore fluctuation in growth rate in the
remittance inflow, in recent years, has created doubts about economic stability. Furthermore, there is an excess liquidity in
the market since investment environment has been disrupted brought about by the vulnerable economic situation of the
country. Nevertheless, the Bank has been trying to introduce various attractive scheme and services so that the Bank can
extend credit facilities in comparatively less risky sector. Aside of that, the Bank could not extend its networks due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 followed by nationwide lockdown declared by the Government. However, the Bank has been trying
to serve its clients from the existing branches/networks as far as possible.

Due to the policy of Nepal Rastra Bank and fierce competition in banking industries, many financial institutions are in process
of merger. Thus, the number of registered financial institutions excluding micro-finances as of FY 2019/2020 has decreased
to 69, which were 80 during the last FY end.

Implementation Status of the Strategy and Program of the Bank for the FY 2019/2020
1. Non-Performing Loan limited to 1.01 percent as of fiscal year end.

2. As per the branch expansion plan, HBL has opened 9 new branches in various part of the country to reach the total of
68 branches by the fiscal year end 2019/20.

3. Rolled out upgraded, user friendly and secured Mobile/Internet Banking module with added features to promote digital
banking amidst the pandemic.

4. Encouraged use of digital/electronic payment system for cash less transaction through ecommerce and POS terminals
giving various discount facilities to the customers.

Necessary arrangement is done to extend remittance business to various Asian, European and US market.
Different plans and policies are adopted to improve the service standard of branches and profit center.

7. The total number of ATMs in operation reached to 138 with addition of new ATMs in various locations as per the plan
by the fiscal year end 2019/20.
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8. Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities were made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

9. Continuity has been given to the recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.
10. Additional 677 POS terminals have been installed for the convenience of the debit and credit card holders.

11. Continuous effort being made to renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasing
and environment- friendly.

12. T24 banking software browser has been upgraded and made it more secure.

Strategies and Programs for FY 2020/2021

1. To establish 6 new branches and extension counters within and outside the valley as per branch expansion plan.
To curb the NPA in lowest level.

To give continuity to recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.

To introduce new deposits, credit products and innovative banking services.

o > 0Dd

Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities shall be made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

o

To set up 20 additional ATMs at various places as well as newly set up branches to total the number to 158.
To install additional 1,000 POS machines so as to facilitate debit/credit card holders.

To upgrade the existing mobile/internet banking module so as to provide user friendly, secured mobile/internet banking
facilities to the customers. Similarly, motivate use of digital/electronic payment channel such as online/ecommerce
payment as well as use of POS terminal for promotion of cashless transactions.

9. To enlarge the operation of Himalayan Capital Ltd. so as to broaden the bank’s business.
10. To renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasant and environment- friendly.

11. To upgrade and fine-tune CBS system T24 technically as per requirement and complying all the necessary security
measures for better performance.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Since its commencement, the Bank has been discharging its corporate social responsibilities through various social and allied
institutions. The Bank, in the review period, has focused its CSR activities in the field relating to education, healthcare,
orphanage, differently-abled people, old aged home, sports, culture, preservation of cultural heritages and rehabilitation of
victims of natural calamities and social services.

During the FY: 2019/2020, the Bank, under its Corporate Social Responsibility Initiative, has continued supporting various
organization involved in various social causes listed above including the Corona Virus Prevention Control and Treatment
Committee formed by Nepal Government with the total amount of Rs. 47,666,793.31. Detail elaboration of the amount supported
under CSR initiative under various causes have been given in the 28th Annual Report.

The Bank is active in the development of sports culture like in the past. The Bank is fully aware of its corporate social
responsibilities towards the community/nation and committed to continue its CSR initiative in coming days as well.

Board of Directors

During the review period, the 27th Annual General Meeting held on 12th February 2020 had unanimously elected 5 Directors
to represent the Board of Directors of the Bank as per the provision of the Bank’s Article of Association and Memorandum
of Understanding. Among the Directors, Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam, representing Employee Provident Fund, Mr. Faisal N.
Lalani, representing Habib Bank Ltd, Mr. Prachanda Bahadur Shrestha, representing N. Trading Pvt. Ltd., Mr. Sunil Bahadur
Thapa, representing Ava International Pvt. Ltd. and Mr. Ashish Sharma, representing Mutual Trading Pvt. Ltd. were elected
unopposed for the tenure of 4 years. Furthermore, Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam has been unanimously elected as the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Bank for the tenure of 4 years from the same date.

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha representing public shareholder and Mr. Radha Krishna Pote as Independent Professional Director
has continued as the Director in the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Himalaya SJB Rana continues to hold the position of Chief Advisor.

28 | 28th Annual Report



e &

Himgi";yan Bank Ltd.

We would like to congratulate and welcome all the newly appointed Director and are grateful to the former Chairman, Mr.
Manoj Bahadur Shrestha and Director, Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa for their sterling contribution towards the Bank’s progress
and prosperity. Similarly, we would like to express our sincere thanks to the former Alternate Directors Ms. Maya Inayat Ismail,
Ms. Menuka Shrestha, Mrs. Ranjana Shrestha, Mr. Bhisma Kumar Chudal and Mr. Damodar Prasad Subedi for their contributions
towards the progress of the Bank. On this occasion, | would like to declare that the Board of Directors of the Bank is committed
towards prosperity of the Bank.

Audit, Balance Sheet and Other Financials

The Balance Sheet as on July 15, 2020, the Profit and Loss Account, the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Cash Flow,
related annexure and Auditors’ Report for the fiscal year 2019/20, are enclosed with this report. Further, information required
to be disclosed as per the provisions of Company Act 2063, Chapter 7, Clause 109, Sub-Clause (4) are presented as Annex
E. Consolidated Financial Statement has been prepared and presented including the Financial Statement of the Bank’s fully
owned subsidiary “Himalayan Capital Ltd” and other Associate Companies in which the Bank has invested according to the
“Financial Reporting Standards”.

Profit and Loss Appropriation

The net profit after tax and bonus of the Bank amounted to Rs. 2,586.72 million for the fiscal year 2019/20. Including other
comprehensive income, the net profit amounted to Rs. 2,616.96 million fiscal year 2019/20. 20% of the net profiti.e. Rs. 517.34
million, has been appropriated to the Statutory General Reserve Fund. In addition, the Bank has allocated Rs. 367.01 million
from its profit and transferred it to the Bond Repayment Reserve for the HBL Bond 2083 issued worth Rs. 2569.10 million.
Additionally, as per the circular of Regulatory Body, the Bank has transferred Rs. 25.87 million in the reserve for its Corporate
Social Responsibility and Rs. 143.51 Million has been transferred to Regulatory Reserve.

Out of the fund transferred to various Reserves in the previous year, Rs. 47.67 Million is also available for appropriation.
Similarly, 7 years’ bond worth Rs. 600 million issued in July 2013 has been matured from July 2020 which was already paid
back from the profit of previous years. Thus, Rs. 600 million transferred to Bond Repayment Reserve is also available for
appropriation in this year.

For fiscal year 2019/020, 14% bonus share and 6% cash dividend (including tax) have been proposed to the shareholders.
For the proposed bonus shares and cash dividends, an amount of Rs. 1,312,119,400/- and Rs. 562,336,885/- respectively
has been allocated from the retained profit. After the distribution of the proposed bonus shares, the paid-up capital of the
Bank will amount to Rs. 10,684,400,828/-. We are proud of the fact that the Bank has been able to provide good returns in
the form of cash dividends and bonus shares to its shareholders right from the commencement of its operations.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend sincere thanks to the shareholders, esteemed customers, related
divisions of the Government of Nepal such as Finance Ministry, Nepal Rastra Bank, Security Board of Nepal (SEBON), Nepal
Stock Exchange, Company Registrar Office, CDS and Clearing Ltd, Credit Information Bureau of Nepal, Deposit and Credit
Guarantee Fund and all the other Regulatory Bodies for their guidance and invaluable support in discharging banking services.
| would also like to place on record special thanks to the management of our joint venture partner Habib Bank Limited,
Pakistan, the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, including entire staff for making dynamic contributions to the progress and
prosperity of the Bank. Finally, | would like to extend hearty thanks to the media for giving wide coverage to our activities and
to all our well-wishers.

Thank you.

Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Chairman
Date: 17 December 2020
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PRINCIPAL INDICATORS

FY FY FY FY FY FY
Particulars Unit 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
2072/73 2073/74 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77
Restated

Profit before Bonus and Tax/Total Income Percent 42.89 36.48 40.93 26.15 32.64 28.06
Per Share Income Rs. 43.03 33.55 35.15 23.11 32.44 27.60
Per Share Market Value Rs. 1500 886 886 551 552 540
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 34.86 26.40 25.21 23.84 17.02 19.57
Dividend on Share Capital (Including Bonus) Percent 31.58 26.32 26.32 15.79 22.00 20.00
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 1.58 1.32 1.32 10.79 12.00 6.00
Interest Income/Loan and Advances Percent 7.26 8.94 9.52 11.64 11.67 10.79
Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 52.96 56.01 56.34 53.02 53.79 53.02
Interest Expenses on Total Deposit Percent 1.79 3.42 3.52 5.61 6.13 5.77
FX Fluctuation Gain/Total Income Percent 8.55 6.52 7.00 5.81 5.50 5.33
Net Profit after Tax/Total Assets (ROA) Ratio 1.94 2.03 2.19 1.67 2.21 1.79
Net Profit after Tax/Total Equity (ROE) Percent 24.53 21.22 21.58 1417 18.34 15.40
Total Loan/Deposits Percent 79.12 83.59 85.10 88.31 87.37 82.31
Total Operating Expenses/Total Income Percent 28.23 23.97 22.36 16.96 16.68 16.81
Capital Adequacy Ratio:

A. Core Capital Percent 9.43 10.93 10.93 11.40 11.63 11.76

B. Supplementary Capital Percent 1.41 1.22 1.22 1.06 0.97 3.13

C. Total Capital Fund Percent 10.84 12.15 12.15 12.46 12.60 14.89
Liquidity Percent 28.74 26.64 26.64 23.05 26.25 31.39
Non-performing Loan/Total Loan Percent 1.23 0.85 0.85 1.40 1.12 1.01
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 4.59 4.44 4.44 4.70 4.47 3.77
Book Networth per share Rs. 196.12 180.31 189.91 174.24 187.73 187.67
Total Share Number | 44,991,450 64,916,235 ' 64,916,235 = 81,145,294 = 85,202,558 = 93,722,814
Total Staff Number 857 835 835 834 910 1029
Number of Branches Number 42 47 47 55 59 68
Number of ATMs Number 84 93 93 105 122 138

e Figures of FY 2073/74 have been regrouped/ restated based on NFRS whereever necessary.
e Figures of FY 2074/75 onwards have been presented based on NFRS.
e Staff Bonus has not been considered while calculating the ratio for staff expenses and operating expenses.
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Key Indicators
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Key Indicators
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Deposits-From Customers and BFls

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Deposit

4.72% ]
Call Deposit Current Deposit

4.78% 8.85%

\ _

Fixed Deposit

34.04%
47.61%

Saving Deposit

Financial Year 2076/77 (2019/20)

Other Deposit

4.28% ]
Call Deposit Current Deposit

5.00% 10.16%

\ _

Fixed Deposit 33.24%
47.32%

Loans and advances

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Deprived
Hire Purchase Sector Loan Bills Purchased &
Loan 4.70% Discounted  Qther Loan
Margin ~ 7.66% 0.09% 8.99%
Lending
1.53% Term Loan

17.04%

Real Working Capital
Estate Import/ Loan
3.82% Export 42.53%

13.63%

Financial Year 2076/77 (2019/20)

Deprived
Hire Purchase  Sector Loan Bills Purchased &
Loan 4.61% Discounted  QOther Loan

Margin ~ 6.89%
Lending
1.48%

0.03%

7.53%

Term Loan
20.36%

Real Working Capital
— Estate Import/ Loan
3.64% Export 42.48%

12.98%
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Income Composition

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Operating
i Income
Net Fee and Net Trading
Commission lincome 2.62%
Income 10.75%

11.32%

Net Interest Income
75.31%

Financial Year 2076/77 (2019/20)

Other Operating
i Income
NetFeeand  Net Trading
Commission lincome 2.27%
Income 11.92%

10.70%

Net Interest Income
75.12%

Expense Composition

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Operating Expense
36.75%

Staff Expenses excluding

Depreciation and statutory bonus
Amortization 55.40%
7.85%

Financial Year 2076/77 (2019/20)

Other Operating Expense
37.73%

Staff Expenses excluding
Depreciation and statutory bonus
Amortization 54.45%
7.82%
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B.R.S. Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Kumari Marg, House No. 43
P.O. Box 8137, Naxal,
Kathmandu, Nepal

Fox o771 420872 B.R.S. Neupane
E-mail : ch .com.
s biimirione i & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Himalayan Bank Limited
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Himalayan Bank Limited, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31% Ashad 2077, and Statement of Profit and
Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects the
Financial Position of the company as at 31 Ashad 2077 and its financial performance and its Cash
Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together
with ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the company under the provisions of
Company Act, 2063 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 15" July 2020.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The

A member of

Nexia

International
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results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

| How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Identification of Non-performing Advances and Provisioning of Advances
(Refer Schedule 4.6 & 4.7 read with Note 3.4(f) of Notes to Financial Statements)

Loans and Advances include Bills Purchased and
Discounted, Overdrafts Loan Repayable on Demand,
Terms Loans and Other Loans. These advances are
covered by movable/ immovable assets, guarantees
of Banks and other collaterals.

Loans and Advances constitute 68.94% of total
assets of the Bank. They are governed by Nepal
Rastra Bank (NRB) Directives and other circulars,
notices and directives issued by NRB from time to
time which provides the guidelines related to the
classification of Loans and Advances into
performing and non-performing assets (NPAs).

The provisioning for identified NPAs is estimated
based on ageing and classification of NPAs, recovery
estimates, valie of security and other qualitative
factors and is subject to the minimum provisioning
norms specified by NRB and amount described as
per Para 63 of NAS 39 adopting Incurred Loss
Model.

Identification of performing and non-performing
advances involves establishment of proper
mechanism. The Bank accounts for all the
transactions related to Loans and Advances in its
Information Technology System (IT System) viz.
Core Banking System (CBS) which also provides
information to identify whether the advances are
performing or non-performing.

Considering the nature of transactions, regulatory
requirements, existing business environment,
estimation/ judgement involved in valuation of
securities, it is a matter of high importance for the
intended users of this Financial Statements.
Considering these aspects, we have determined this
as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit approach towards advances with reference to the
NRB Directives and other circulars/ notifications issued by
NRB and also internal policies and procedures of the Bank
included the testing of following:

e The accuracy of the data input in the system for income
recognition, classification into performing and non-
performing Loans, Advances and provisioning in
accordance with the NRB Norms.

The design and operating effectiveness of key controls,
including IT Based Controls, focusing on periodic
internal audits conducted by the Bank, periodic valuation
of collateral for loans and advances and assessment of
adequacy of NPA provisions.

We have examined the efficacy of various internal controls
over advances to determine the nature, timing and extent of
the substantive procedures and compliance with the
observations of various audits conducted as per the
monitoring mechanism of the Bank.

In carrying out substantive procedures at the branches
sampled by us, we have examined selected/sampled loans
which also included the review of valuation reports of
independent valuator’s approved against the collateral
security by the Bank’s management.

Our Result: We considered the identification of Non-
Performing Advances and their provisioning to be
acceptable.

Investment Valuation, Identification and Impairm

ent

(Refer Schedule 4.8 read with Notes 3.4 of Notes to Account)

Investment of the Bank comprises of investment in
Government Bonds, T-Bills, Development Bonds,
Investment in quoted and Unquoted Equity
Instruments. The valuation of these instruments has
been done in compliance with Nepal Accounting
Standards (NAS) 39 read with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) 9 and NRB Directive
No. 8/076.

Our audit approach regarding verification of process of

investment valuation, identification and impairment

included:

e Review of the investment of the Bank and its valuation
having reference to NFRS and NRB Directives

o For Investment valuation that are done at amortized cost,
we checked the effective interest rate (EIR) and
Amortization Schedule on Test Check Basis.
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The investment in the government and NRB Bonds
and T-Bills have been done on Amortized Cost and
rest have been valued through Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

Given there are different methods recommended for
the treatment of recognition, valuation and
measurement of investments based on the nature of
cash flow, the business model adopted, complexity
of calculations and the significance of amount
involved, we have considered Investment to be our
Key Audit Matter.

e For the investment valued through Other Comprehensive
Income for quoted investment, we ensured that fair
valuation has been done at the closing transaction rate in
Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) as on 15% July 2020.

* Income and Bonus received have been verified through
DEMAT statement maintained by the Bank wherever
applicable.

Our Result: We agreed with the recognition, disclosures
and valuations made by the Bank.

Impact of COVID — 19 on the Bank and Compliance with circular issued by NRB

On 11" March, 2020 the COVID — 19 outbreak was
declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization. On 24% March 2020, Nepal
Government announced a strict nation-wide
lockdown which continued till 21% July 2020.

Due to lockdown, the profitability of the Bank was
highly impacted and NRB issued various circulars
for the benefit of the loanees and other stakeholders
of the Bank. This included rebate provided to various
industries and rebate for fines and penalties that
would be normally imposed by the Bank in case of
non-payment of dues by the customers.

Since, the impact of COVID — 19 is significant on
the performance of the Bank, we have determined
this as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit approach regarding the impact of COVID — 19
outbreak and the mitigation approach by the Bank is based
on the various circulars issued by NRB on various dates till
the date of our review.

Provisions like 10% discount on interest paid till 12% April
2020, 2% rebate on applicable interest as at 12 April 2020
for the fourth quarter, waiver on fees charged on digital
transactions till 15" July 2020 and relaxation of the penal
charges (interest and penalties) to the customers during the
pandemic period were verified on a test-sample basis.

Furthermore, due to COVID — 19 pandemic, we had to
modify our audit approach and credit review of some of the
branches sampled during our audit plan were conducted
remotely from Head Office instead of physical visit of the
branch.

Our Result: We did not find any instances of non-
compliance during the course of our audit in relation to
rebate provided by the Bank.

Information Technology Systems and Controls Im

acting Financial Reporting

The Information Technology of the Bank is complex
and involves a large number of independent and
inter-dependent IT Systems used in the operations of
the Bank for processing and recording a large
volume of transactions. As a result, there is a high
degree of reliance and dependency on such IT
systems for the financial reporting process of the
Bank.

Appropriate IT General Controls and application
controls are required to ensure that such IT systems
are able to process the data, as required, completely,
accurately and consistently for financial reporting.
We have considered this as key audit matter as any
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input
data and wrong extraction of data may result in
wrong reporting of data to management,

stakeholders and regulators.

Our audit approach regarding Information Technology of

the Bank is based upon the Information Technology

Guidelines 2012 issued by NRB and it also included:

 Verification of the interest income and expense booking
regarding loan and deposits on test check basis with the
CBS of the Bank.

» Reliance on the IT audit conducted by the Bank.

e Verification of the provisioning of the loan and advances
based on ageing on test check basis.

Our Result: We considered the information technology
systems and their relevant controls to be adequate.

Assessment of Provisions in respect of certain litigations including Income Tax and claims filed by various

parties not acknowledged as debt

(Refer Schedule 4.28.5 read with Note 3.12 of Notes to Account)

There is a high level of judgement required in
estimating level of provisioning. The Bank’s

Our audit procedures included:
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assessment is supported by facts of matter, their own
judgement, past experience, and advices from legal
and independent consultants wherever considered
necessary. Accordingly, unexpected adverse
outcomes may significantly impact the Bank’s profit
and the Statement of Financial Position.

We determined the above area as Key Audit Matter
in view of associated uncertainty relating to the
outcome of these matters which requires application

e Understanding of current status of litigations/ tax
assessments

o Evaluating the merit of the subject matter under
consideration with reference to grounds presented therein
and available legal/ tax advice

* Review and analysis of evaluation of the contentions of
the Bank through discussions, collections of details of the
subject matter under consideration, the likely outcome
and potential outflows on these issues.

of judgement in interpretation of law.
Our Result: We agreed with the assessment of provisions
in respect of litigations and provisions thereon provided by
the Bank.

Other Matter

We did not audit the Financial Statement and Other Financial Information of subsidiary namely
Himalayan Capital Limited. The financial statements and other financial information have been
audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion
on the Financial Statement so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect
of the subsidiary is based solely on the report of other auditor.

The auditor’s report is intended solely for the intended users, and should not be distributed to or
used by other parties.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in
accordance with NFRS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records for the safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing and Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are
free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Group’s Activities to express an opinion on Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and we did not come across any fraudulence in
the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts. The accounts
and records of the Bank has been maintained as required by law and Financial Statements are in
agreement with the Books of Account maintained by the Bank. In our opinion, so far as appeared
from our examination of books of the books, the Bank has maintained adequate capital funds and
adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the Directives of Nepal
Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Board of Directors,
the representative or any employee of the Bank has not acted in contrary to the provision of the
law relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the Bank deliberately or acted in a
manner that would jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank and the Bank has not acted in
a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the depositors and the investors.

CA. Anup K. Shrestha
Managing Partner

UDIN: 201130CA00028wknmT

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 29t November 2020
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)

Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 7,342,927,500 6,968,074,029 7,231,138,781 6,968,064,034
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 12,407,815,815 4,883,535,225 12,407,815,815 4,883,535,225
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 6,342,173,790 2,921,725,295 6,342,173,790 2,921,725,295
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 115,621,217 127,145,274 115,621,217 127,145,274
Other trading assets 4.5 6,202,746 - - -
Loans & Advances to BFls 4.6 4,998,075,266 4,772,752,717 4,998,075,266 4,772,752,717
Loans & Advances to Customers 4.7 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360
Investment Securities 4.8 18,264,102,972 16,466,201,909 18,241,666,700 16,466,201,909
Current Tax Assets 4.9 354,981,127 225,444,808 351,495,017 224,947,032
Investments in subsidiaries 4.10 - - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Investments in Associates 4.11 1,274,910,382 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
Investment Property 412 379,802,213 109,134,713 379,802,213 109,134,713
Property & Equipment 413 2,420,401,016 2,394,090,867 2,411,792,114 2,391,830,155
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 151,955,806 117,677,347 151,101,486 117,677,347
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 - - - -
Other Assets 4.16 1,130,351,233 1,074,449,208 1,129,983,720 1,075,024,312
Total Assets 156,917,788,247 133,862,215,596 155,884,918,983 133,151,142,073
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417  6,595,869,088 3,702,916,346 6,595,869,088 3,702,916,346
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 155,736,786 560,812,042 155,736,786 560,812,042
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 75,543,132 6,540,600 75,543,132 6,540,600
Deposits from Customers 4.20 125,096,953,881 109,184,801,597 125,264,381,690 109,387,060,433
Borrowing 4.21 - - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - - -
Provisions 4,22 - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 96,033,109 98,894,441 95,895,829 98,843,796
Other Liabilities 423  3,660,851,401 2,776,920,829 3,544,577,238 2,777,021,958
Debt Securities Issued 424  2,563,661,608 623,148,518 2,563,661,608 623,148,518
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total Liabilities 138,244,649,005 116,954,034,373 138,295,665,371 117,156,343,693
Equity

Share Capital 426  9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings 3,579,648,418 3,083,584,531 2,496,762,387 2,171,146,878
Reserves 427  5,721,209,396 5,304,340,848 5,720,209,797 5,303,395,658
Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders 18,673,139,242 16,908,181,223 17,589,253,612 15,994,798,380
Non Controlling Interest - - - -
Total Equity 18,673,139,242 16,908,181,223 17,589,253,612 15,994,798,380
Total Liabilities and Equity 156,917,788,247 133,862,215,596 155,884,918,983 133,151,142,073
Contingent liabilities and commitment 428 33,696,518,879 33,859,116,570 33,696,518,879 33,859,116,570
Net assets value per share 199 198 188 188

Mr. Satish Raj Joshi
Executive Financial Officer

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Chairman

Mr. Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

As per our attached report of even date

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa
Director

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

Mr. Ashish Sharma
Director

Mr. Radha Krishna Pote
Director

Mr. Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sunday, November 29, 2020
Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)

Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Interest Income 429 12,186,909,433 11,625,415,050 12,178,993,328 11,625,415,050
Interest Expense 4.30 7,346,735,428 6,583,850,344 7,357,289,768 6,594,074,206
Net interest income 4,840,174,005 5,041,564,706 4,821,703,560 5,031,340,844
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 748,058,735 821,306,480 748,844,018 821,306,480
Fee and Commission Expenses 4.32 62,103,211 65,065,606 62,103,211 65,065,606
Net Fee and Commission Income 685,955,524 756,240,874 686,740,807 756,240,874
Net interest, fee and commission income 5,526,129,529 5,797,805,580 5,508,444,367 5,787,581,718
Net Trading Income 4.33 766,090,091 718,157,896 764,970,517 718,157,896
Other Operating Income 4.34 88,690,884 116,577,355 145,395,261 175,116,610
Total Operating Income 6,380,910,504 6,632,540,831 6,418,810,145 6,680,856,224
Impairment charges/(reversal) for Loans 4.35 305,628,495 133,622,099 305,628,495 133,622,099
and Other losses
Net operating income 6,075,282,009 6,498,918,732 6,113,181,650 6,547,234,125
Operating expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 1,651,124,877 1,638,125,616 1,651,124,877 1,638,125,616
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 887,238,635 800,067,062 870,171,111 796,698,563
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 181,774,279 170,202,450 180,320,527 170,198,215
Operating Profit 3,355,144,218 3,890,523,604 3,411,565,135 3,942,211,731
Non operating income 4.39 625,086,686 317,097,948 398,076,669 49,327,264
Non operating expense 4.40 251,255,804 58,378,395 251,255,804 58,378,395
Profit before income tax 3,728,975,100 4,149,243,157 3,558,386,000 3,933,160,600
Income Tax Expense 4.41

Current Tax 979,250,534 1,194,380,193 979,250,534 1,192,123,441

Deferred Tax (7,600,706)  (22,760,671) (7,587,244) (22,811,316)
Profit for the year 2,757,225,272 2,977,623,635 2,586,722,710 2,763,848,475
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 2,757,225,272 2,977,623,635 2,586,722,710 2,763,848,475

Non-controlling interest ) B ) -
Profit for the year 2,757,225,272 2,977,623,635 2,586,722,710 2,763,848,475
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 29.42 34.95 27.60 32.44

Diluted earnings per share 29.42 34.95 27.60 32.44

Mr. Satish Raj Joshi
Executive Financial Officer

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Chairman

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa
Director

Mr. Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

Mr. Ashish Sharma

Director

Mr. Radha Krishna Pote

Director

As per our attached report of even date

Mr. Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sunday, November 29, 2020

Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Profit or loss for the year 2,757,225,272 2,977,623,635 2,586,722,710 2,763,848,475
Other comprehensive income, net off income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity 15,464,577  (32,029,738) 15,464,255 (32,029,738)
instruments measured at fair value
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation - - - -
- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit 19,416,439 (4,932,297) 19,416,439 (4,932,297)
plans
- Income tax relating to above items (4,639,373) 9,608,921 (4,639,276) 9,608,921
Net other comprehsive income that will not be 30,241,643 (27,353,114) 30,241,418 (27,353,114)
reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - - = -
- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from - - - -
translating financial assets of foreign operation)
- Income tax relating to above items - - - -
- Reclassify to profit or loss - - - -
Net other comprehsive income that are or may
be reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of - - - -
associate accounted as per equity method
Other comprehensive income for the period, 30,241,643 (27,353,114) 30,241,418 (27,353,114)
net off income tax
Total comprehensive income for the period 2,787,466,915 2,950,270,521 2,616,964,128 2,736,495,361
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 2,787,466,915 2,950,270,521 2,616,964,128  2,736,495,361
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period 2,787,466,915 2,950,270,521 2,616,964,128 2,736,495,361

Mr. Satish Raj Joshi Mr. Ashoke SJB Rana As per our attached report of even date
Executive Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam

hairman
Chai Mr. Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Mr. Faisal N. Lalani Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha Mr. Ashish Sharma Bhélgnh?eg&rg)%ﬁgréngz
Director Director Director Chartered Accountants
Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha Mr. Radha Krishna Pote Sunday, November 29, 2020
Director Director Director Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 10,764,372,538 10,813,849,461 10,764,390,456  10,813,849,461
Fees and other income received 748,844,018 821,306,480 748,844,018 821,306,480
Dividend received - - -

Receipts from other operating activities 1,265,925,633 856,610,453 1,266,710,915 856,651,485
Interest paid (6,763,652,927) (6,390,142,124)  (6,774,207,267) (6,400,365,986)
Commission and fees paid (62,103,211) (65,065,606) (62,103,211) (65,065,606)

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating
assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end

(1,645,936,758)
(1,138,494,439)

3,168,954,854

(7,524,280,590)
(3,420,448,495)

(229,558,190)
(9,098,136,200)
(25,879,693)

(20,298,303,168)

2,892,952 742
(405,075,256)
15,912,152,284

575,257,068

18,975,286,838
(1,108,786,853)

737,151,671

(16,518,011,725)
14,670,185,905
(184,632,781)
9,660,288
(70,594,815)

992,703,314
58,978,852

(1,041,710,962)

2,569,104,000
(600,000,000)

(957,802,167
(317,907,274

=~

693,394,559

388,835,268
6,968,074,029
(13,981,797)

7,342,927,500

(1,362,698,471)
(857,826,693)

3,816,033,500

275,724,512
2,067,799,521
(1,093,002,884)
(10,347,959,008)
(199,567,203)

(9,297,005,062)

2,948,662,389
560,812,042
10,196,010,385

384,831,215

14,090,316,031
(1,265,517,395)

7,343,827,074

(18,678,495,599)
13,895,538,029
(358,328,221)
52,543,219
(66,209,101)

3,500,000
701,810,401
63,317,521

(4,386,323,750)

(680,232,451)
(68,235,352)

(748,467,803)

2,209,035,520
4,741,359,383
17,679,126

6,968,074,029

(1,645,936,758)
(1,121,426,915)

3,176,271,238

(7,524,280,590
(3,420,448,495

(9,098,136,200
(26,130,403

(20,298,553,878)

)
)
(229,558,190)
)
)

2,892,952 742
(405,075,256)
15,877,321,257

460,075,104

18,825,273,847
(1,105,798,519)

597,192,688

(16,489,244,292)
14,668,937,594
(177,013,747)
9,660,288
(69,557,588)

984,769,291
58,917,751

(1,013,530,703)

2,569,104,000
(600,000,000)

(957,802,167
(317,907,274

I =~

693,394,559

277,056,544
6,968,064,034
(13,981,797)

7,231,138,781

(1,362,698,471)
(854,458,194)

3,809,219,169

275,724,512
2,067,799,521
(1,093,002,884)
(10,347,959,008)
(200,142,306)

(9,297,580,165)

2,948,662,389
560,812,042
10,398,269,221

384,932,343

14,292,675,995
(1,262,762,867)

7,541,552,132

(18,878,495,599)
13,895,538,029
(356,232,954)
52,712,899
(66,209,101)

3,500,000
701,810,401
63,317,521

(4,584,058,804)

(680,232,451)
(68,235,352)

(748,467,803)

2,209,025,525
4,741,359,383
17,679,126

6,968,064,034
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STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2077

Asar 2076

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:

-~ o o 0 T ®

. General reserve
. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

Capital redemption reserve

. Corporate social responsibility fund
. Employees' training fund

Other

- Capital Adjustment Reserve

- Bond Redemption Reserve

- Investment Adjustment Reserve

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :

JQ ™ 0o o O T ©®

. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)
. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss)

2,586,722,710

(517,344,542)

(25,867,227)

(367,014,857)

1,676,496,084

(13,366,841)

(130,140,681)

19,416,439

1,552,405,001

2,763,848,475

(552,769,695)
(4,419,782)
(27,638,485)
(19,564,872)

(85,714,286)
(1,214,859)

2,072,526,495

(9,017,808)

(106,835,406)

(4,932,297)

1,951,740,984
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2077 (15 July 2020)

1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Corporate Information

Himalayan Bank Limited ("the Bank") is a public limited liability company domiciled in Nepal, with its corporate office
in Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is operating through 68 branches, three extension counter and one overseas
representative office. The shares of the Bank are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited.

1.2 Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity

The Bank is not a subsidiary of any entity. The bank has established a wholly owned subsidiary to carry out merchant
banking services which has come into operation from August 2019. The subsidiary Himalayan Capital Limited is licensed
by Securities Board of Nepal to carry out merchant banking activities and also act as depository participant.

1.3 Principal Activities

The Bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank, the central bank of Nepal, to carry out commercial banking activities in
Nepal as class 'A' financial institution under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Bank provides a comprehensive
range of financial services that include accepting deposits, corporate and retail lending, project financing, trade financing,
fund transfer. The Bank also offers remittance services, card services and other ancillary services like safe deposit locker
services as well as a wide range of electronic banking facilities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The standalone financial statements of the bank as well as the consolidated financial statements of the bank and its
subsidiary is prepared on going concern basis under historical cost convention except where the accounting standard
adopted by the bank explicitly requires the use of fair market value. All judgments, estimates and assumptions used
by the bank and its subsidiary while preparing the financial statement have been disclosed in the relevant sections of
notes to accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial Statements of the Bank and its subsidiary which comprise of the Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flow and
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs) laid down by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, except where alternative treatments have been adopted
in line with carve-outs approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), the accounting regulating
body of the country. The bank has adopted the format prescribed by the regulator (Nepal Rastra Bank) for the preparation
of the financial statements.

The financial statement of the subsidiary has been regrouped/ restated accordingly to facilitate consolidation.
2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements cover the financial year commencing from Shrawan 01, 2076 and ending on Asar
31, 2077 (17 July 2019 to 15 July 2020). The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution of the Board of Directors dated Mangsir 14, 2077 (November 29, 2020).

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Nepalese Rupees is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank and its subsidiary as it is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which they operate. Hence, items included in the consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Nepalese Rupees.

2.4 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with NFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions for application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from the estimates so made. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and the effect of revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The most significant uses of judgment and estimates are as
follows:
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(a) Going concern

The management has made an assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using judgments that may, among other things, include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount rates,
prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

(c) Classification of financial instruments

The bank and its subsidiary have classified the financial assets and liabilities under different accounting classification
as per NFRS 9. These are either measured at fair value or amortized cost. According to NFRS 9, debt instruments
are recognized at amortized cost and investment in equity instrument can be elected to be recognized as fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The bank has elected
to measure its investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income unless recognized
as associate or subsidiary.

(d) Impairment losses on loans and advances

As per the carve-out approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, Bank and Financial Institutions
shall measure impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher of the amount derived as per rule-based norms
prescribed by the Regulator and the amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39, with proper disclosures
of the same. Accordingly, the Bank has assessed impairment loss under both norms and impairment provided in
the financial statements is the impairment under norms prescribed by the Regulator with separate disclosure of
impairment calculated under NAS 39.

(e) Impairment of Equity Instruments

The Bank and its subsidiary records impairment charges on quoted equity investments by comparing with the fair
market value as on the reporting date. In case of un-quoted equity investments, impairment is recorded only where
there is objective evidence of permanent decline in the value of investment.

(f) Taxation

The Bank and its subsidiary is subject to income taxes. Significant judgment was required to determine the total
provision for current and deferred taxes pending the issue of tax guidelines on the treatment of the adoption of
NFRSs in the financial statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainties exist,
with respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of the preparation of these financial
statements.

The Bank and its subsidiary has recognized assets and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts initially recorded, such differences shall impact the income of that year.

(g) Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary difference in tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable
to the bank and its subsidiary as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

(h) Defined Benefit plan

The bank has recognized gratuity and accumulated leave encashment as defined benefit plan. The cost of the
defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation by an actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, salary increment rate, age of retirement, and mortality rates, among other things.
Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The assumptions
used for valuation is disclosed in detail in Note 4.23
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The subsidiary is operating under a full scope management contract and hence long term liability with respect to
employee is not there.

(i) Materiality

In compliance with NAS 01 on Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the Financial Statements. Iltems of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately, if they
are material.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in
the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank and its subsidiary.

(j) Depreciation of Assets

The depreciable amount of an asset has been allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life using diminishing
balance method and depreciation rate determined by the management on the basis of nature and expected use
of the asset class. The systematic basis has however been determined using the best management judgment.
Details regarding the useful lives of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 3.7.

(k) Fair Value of Investment Property

Non-Banking Assets, which are assets mortgaged with the bank and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the
course of recovery of the loan, are shown under Investment Properties. The value at which such assets are taken
over in line with the guidelines issued by the Regulator have been considered as fair value of such assets.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

There are no changes in accounting policies

2.6 New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has issued revised sets of Nepal Financial Reporting Standard 2018. These
set of accounting standards supersedes currently applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standard 2013. From these
accounting standards NFRS 9, NFRS 14, NFRS 15, NFRS 16, NFRS 17 and NAS 29 will be applicable from 16th July
2021 onwards and rest from 16th July 2020 onwards.

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has provided carve out on various standards accounting standards
for certain period. Some of these carve-outs are compulsory while some are mandatory. The carve-outs applied by the
bank are:

NAS 39: Financial Instrument Recognition and Measurement ( Incurred Loss model to measure the Impairment loss
on Loan and Advances); Carve out from the requirement to determine impairment loss on financial assets — loans and
advances by adopting the ‘Incurred Loss Model’ as specified in para 63 of NAS 39 unless the reporting entity is a bank
or a financial institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment
loss on loans and advances at the higher of: - Amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan
loss provisioning; and - Amount determined as per para 63 of NAS 39 adopting Incurred Loss Model. The bank has
applied this carve-out.

NAS 39: Effective interest rate of loans and advance; The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or when appropriate a shorter
period of the net carrying amount of financial asset or financial liability. While recognizing loans and advances at
amortized cost, the bank has opted the carve out provided by the ICAN for determining effective interest rate. As a result
of this alternative treatment, the bank hasn’t included the loan processing fees received by the bank while calculating
the effective interest rate to be used to amortize the loans and advances justifying that such fees and commission are
immaterial to the total income from such loans and advances. The fees and commission are recognized as income in
the same period when loan is approved and subsequently implemented/ disbursed.

2.8 Discounting

Discounting has only been used for actuarial valuation and staff loan. The assumptions used for valuation is disclosed
in detail in Note 4.23
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3.2

3.3

3.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in the
Statement of financial position, all of which are measured at fair value.

e Investment in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI
® Investment Properties
Basis of Consolidation

The bank has a fully owned subsidiary incorporated to carry out merchant banking activities. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with NFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call
and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank and its subsidiary
in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements on future cash flows
or from owning equity instruments of another entity. Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual
agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering cash or another financial asset. The bank and its subsidiary
has applied NFRS 9 in defining, classifying and measuring its financial instruments.

(a) Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular way trades”: purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

(b) Classification

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are classified under NFRS 9. The categorization of financial assets and
financial liabilities is based on the business model of holding the instrument and contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial instrument. Business model reflects how groups of financial instruments are managed to achieve
a particular business objective. Business Model can be either to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows (hold to collect) or to trade the asset for market gains and Contractual Cash Flow are the contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial Instrument

e Financial Instrument at amortized cost: Financial Instrument are held at amortized cost when the business
model is to hold the asset in order to collect the contractual cash flows of the asset. The entire debt instrument
that the bank holds has been categorized as held at amortized cost.

e Financial Instrument at fair value: If financial assets aren’t measured at amortized cost then they are measured
at fair value.

- Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Management designates an instrument
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

The Bank and its subsidiary has not designated any financial instrument as at fair value through profit or
loss.

- Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): If the instrument
isn’t categorized at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss then it is classified as fair value through
OCl.
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(c) Measurement
The measurement of financial instrument is based on the classification of the instrument:

Financial Instrument At Amortized Cost: Initially, the asset or liability is measured at fair value plus/minus transaction
cost and any immediate payment related to the instrument. Subsequently, the instrument is amortized using the
effective interest rate. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash flows to the present
outstanding amount.

Effective interest rate of loans and advance: While recognizing loans and advances at amortized cost, the bank
has opted the carve out provided by ICAN for determining effective interest rate. As a result of this alternative
treatment, the bank hasn’t included the loan processing fees received by the bank while calculating the effective
interest rate used to amortize the loans and advances justifying that such fees and commission are immaterial to
the total income from such loans and advances. The fees and commission are recognized as income in the same
period when loan is approved and subsequently implemented/ disbursed.

Staff Loans and advances: When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, the Bank immediately recognizes the difference between the transaction price
and fair value as Prepaid Benefit. Bank accordingly estimates the Prepaid Beneéfit in relation to Staff Loans and
advances given under subsidized rate of interest. While calculating the fair value in case of Staff Loans, the average
base rate for past 13 months of the Bank has been considered to be the market rate for the loan. Further, the
amortized income and expense of such prepaid benefit is shown both under Interest Income as well as Personnel
expense as it is a notional income and expense for the Bank.

® Base Rate is the minimum lending rate recommended by Nepal Rastra Bank and is calculated separately for
each individual bank every month as per the method prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Financial Instrument At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): When the instrument is recognized at fair
value through profit or loss, then the initial transaction cost is expensed to profit or loss and subsequently any
change in its fair value is recognized in statement of financial performance.

Financial Instrument At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): While measuring the
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income the instrument is initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequently, any changes in the fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(d) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
recognized when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

e The entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either:

® The entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

e The entity has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the entity’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the entity also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the entity could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
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3.5

3.6

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value
of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value for financial instruments traded
in active markets at the statement of financial position date is based on their quoted market price. However for
valuating promoters shares which are quoted in market but not actively traded, 60 percent of market price of public
shares has been considered. In case of all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the Bank and
its subsidiary recognizes such unquoted equity instruments at their cost price.

(f) Impairment

Loans & Advances: The Bank recognises impairment on loans and advances as the higher of the amount computed
as per the norms prescribed by the Regulator and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS -39.

Under the norms prescribed by the Regulator, impairment is provisioned from 0.25% to 100% of the outstanding
balance depending on the categorization of the individual loans & advances. For assessment of impairment under
NAS 39, the Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date
against pre-determined criteria to assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement.
The Bank has set the criteria of Significance for Individual Impairment as follows:

1. Top 50 Customers based on the amortized cost, outstanding as at the reporting date
2. The loans those are overdue for more than 180 days as at the reporting date

In particular, management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. All individually not significant loans and
advances and those significant loans & advances not individually impaired are assessed collectively, in groups of
assets with similar product nature (viz. Home Loan, Hire Purchase Loan, Short Term Loan, Term Loan and Personal
Loan), to determine whether impairment need to be recognized due to incurred loss events for which there is
objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from
the loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the
effect of concentrations of risks and economic data (real estate prices indices, country risk and the performance
of different individual groups).

Financial investments at FVOCI: For these financial investments, the entity assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired. The entity assesses individually whether there is objective
evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.

In the case of equity investments, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the
fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognized in the income statement — is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; increases in the fair value
after impairment are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the Bank and its subsidiary acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. The other trading asset includes
non derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills,
Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.

Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument
prices, foreign exchange rates. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments.

Derivative instruments-both assets as well as liabilities; like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes are presented under this head.
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3.7 Property and Equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement

Property & Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with NAS 16 on Property, Plant
& Equipment. Initially property and equipment are measured at cost.

(b) Cost Model

Property and equipment (including equipment under operating leases where the Bank and its subsidiary is the
lessor) is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(c) Subsequent Cost

These are costs that are recognised in the carrying amount of an item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within that part will flow to the entity and it can be reliably measured.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the diminishing balance method to write down the cost of property and equipment
using the rates stipulated as follows. Land is not depreciated.

e Buildings 5%

e Computer Hardware 20%
® Machinery and Equipment 15%
e Motor Vehicle 15%
e Furniture and Fittings- Wood 15%
e Furniture and Fittings- Metal 10%

(e) De-recognition

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in ‘Other operating income' in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised.

(f) Assets under Grant:

Where grant is received to compensate the cost of acquiring a depreciable asset fully or partially, the grant can be
either presented as deferred income or is deducted at arriving the carrying amount of the asset. The entity has
opted to present the grant as deferred income and therefore the asset has been shown in full purchase value.

3.8 Goodwill /Intangible assets

The Bank and its subsidiary’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised
only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to it will flow to the entity. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year—end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Computer software is amortised equally over the estimated useful life of five
years.
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3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

Investment Property

“Investment Property” is shown as a separate line item in the face of Statement of Financial Position as these assets
are assets of the bank from the date of repossession and are intended to dispose off from the legal process in due
course of time. They are recognized at fair value in the books. However, non-banking assets shown under investment
property and which are taken over at the lower of fair value (PanchakritMulya) or total amount due from the borrower
as per guidelines issued by the Regulator is continued to be shown at the recorded value till the same is disposed.

Income Tax
(a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each statement of financial
position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

® |n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in OCI are also recognised in OCI and not in the
income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Bank and its subsidiary, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss,
are classified as liabilities under Deposits from Customers, Due to Bank and Financial Institutions, Borrowings, and other
Liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Bank and its subsidiary having an obligation
either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank or its subsidiary has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision
is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
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the amount of a provision is determined by discounting the anticipated future cash flows expected to be required to
settle the obligation at a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the bank and its subsidiary
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised.

(a) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

Interest income on loans and advance: While recognizing loans and advances at amortized cost, the bank has
opted for the carve out provided by ICAN for determining effective interest rate. As a result of this alternative treatment,
the bank hasn’t included the loan processing fees received by the bank while calculating the effective interest rate
used to amortize the loans and advances justifying that such fees and commission given their proportion are
immaterial to the total income from such loans and advances. The fees and commission are recognized as income
in the same period when loan is approved and the amount is received.

Interest Income on Staff Loans and advances: For measuring staff loan and advances at fair value which is
provided below market rate of interest, base rate of past 13 months has been considered to be the market rate of
the loan. The difference between the loan outstanding and fair value of loan is treated as prepaid employee
expenditure. After initial measurement at fair value, the loan is amortized using the rate used to determine fair value.
And the prepaid employee expense is amortized as staff expense under NFRS throughout the period of the loan.

Interest Income of impaired assets

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an
impairment loss, interest income shall be recognized using the interest rate used to discount the future cash flow
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. However, bank has used the alternative treatment as per carve-
out by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset
has been written off either partially or fully.

Suspension of Accrual of Interest Income in loans and advance

Based on the guidelines issued by the regulator (Nepal Rastra Bank), accrual of interest income on loans and
advances are suspended when any of the following criteria is satisfied.

a. Loans where there are reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of the principal or interest
b. Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made

c. Loans where contractual payment of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrear and where the
net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest

d. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral

e. Overdrafts and other short term facilities which haven’t been settled after the expiry of the loan and and even
not renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of the security is insufficient to
cover payment of principal and accrued interest,

f.  Overdraft and other short term facilities which haven’t been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 12 months of the expiry irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral

Where there is suspension of accrual of interest income, interest income is recognized on cash basis until there is
change in circumstances to resume the accrual of interest income. For, resuming accrual of interest income a period
of continued repayment of 12 months can be considered reasonable.
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3.14

3.15

(b) Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee
income can be divided into the following two categories:

e Fee income earned for services that are provided within the reporting period.
e Fees earned for provision of services over a period of time and accrue over that period.

In case of the first category of fees & commission earned, the Bank and its subsidiary recognises the income at
the time of receipt itself whereas in case of the latter category, the commission is deferred over the period of service.
However, if the transaction fees are not material, the Bank and its subsidiary recognises such fees in income at the
time of reporting.

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together
with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan
will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees are recognised over the commitment period on a straight-line basis.
However, such amount collectively tantamount to less than 1% of the total gross loan portfolio of the bank and the
cost of extraction tend to exceed the benefit from its use; hence on materiality ground and as also allowed under
carve-out issued by ICAN, such costs is not considered in the measurement of effective interest rate and accordingly,
the coupon rate embedded in the instrument has been considered to be the Effective Interest Rate for the instrument.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at an amount net of applicable final withholding tax when the entity’s right to receive
the payment is established.

(d) Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes gains and (losses) from changes in fair value, related capital gains/ losses, foreign
exchange trading gains/ (losses), interest income from trading assets and dividend from trading assets

(e) Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

The bank and its subsidiary has not designated any investments as financial instrument at fair value through Profit
or Loss, income also has not been recognized under this head.

(f) Deferred Grant Income

Grants related to assets are presented as deferred grant income. Such deferred grant income is recognized as
income proportionately in the period in which such assets are consumed. For this determining the consumption
of asset, depreciation charged on such asset has been taken as basis. For grant related to expenses incurred by
the bank such grant are recognized as income as and when received.

Interest Expense

The Bank and its subsidiary recognizes the interest expenses on financial liabilities. The interest expenses are recognized
on accrual basis using the applicable interest rate.

Interest expenses include interest on deposits from customers, deposits from banks, debt securities issued, and other
interest bearing financial liabilities.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are compensation paid to employee for the services rendered. Such compensation are recognized
as expense when obligation to make payment arises.

(a) Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity

Based on the Nepal Accounting Standard NAS19- Employee Benefits, the Bank has adopted the actuarial valuation
method for employee benefit liability. Actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the liability under
gratuity.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
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Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income. Interest cost, present service cost and past-service costs are recognized
in statement of profit or loss.

The principal assumptions, which have the most significant effects on the valuation, are the rate of discount, rate
of salary revision, rate of turnover at the selected age groups, rate of disability, death benefits and expenses.

The subsidiary is operating under a full scope management contract and hence long term liability with respect to
employee is not there.

(b) Long Term Paid Absences

Liability towards long term paid absences, accumulated and payable on separation from services of the bank under
Staff Service Bye-Laws, has been assessed using actuarial valuation method and Current service cost, Interest Cost
as well as the actuarial gain/(loss) has been charged to Income Statement. For leave accumulated in excess of
prescribed limit as per Staff Service Bye- Laws, actual amount is charged to income statement in the same year.

(c) Defined Contribution Plan - Employees' Provident Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees' Provident Fund Contributions in line with the respective Statutes and
Regulations. The Bank contributes at 10% with equal contribution from the employees.

(d) Staff Loans and Advances

Staff loans and advances are provided at below market rate of interest. Staff loan is measured at amortized cost
using the effective rate of interest. Effective rate of interest is determined at the average of base rate of past 13
months. Initially staff loans are measured at fair value using the effective interest rate and the difference in fair value
and staff loan is recognized as prepaid expense. Subsequently, interest income on loans and advance is recognized
using the effective interest rate and the prepaid expense is amortized throughout the life of loan as finance expense
under NFRS.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Leases

Bank/Subsidiary as a lessor: Leases where the entity does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Bank/Subsidiary as a lessee: In line with NAS 17, lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance Leases

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership other than
legal title, are classified as ‘Finance Leases’. Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under ‘Loans and
Receivables to Customers’ in the Statement of Financial Position after deduction of initial rentals received, unearned
lease income and the accumulated impairment losses. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the lease, is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the total payments receivable under the lease and the present value of the receivable is recognised
as unearned finance income, which is allocated to accounting periods reflect a constant periodic rate of return.

3.17 Foreign currency translation

All foreign currency transactions are converted to Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is Bank and its subsidiary’s functional
& reporting currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions are effected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the close of the year are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate as on that date and differences are taken to ‘Other operating income’ in
the Income Statement, being of non-trading nature. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in
terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined.

60 | 28th Annual Report



R, e i fafis
Himalayan Bank Ltd.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which
were initially recorded are dealt with in the Income Statement.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

The Bank may give financial guarantees in the ordinary course of business. The guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements (within ‘other liabilities’) at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under
each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognised in the income statement, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial
obligation arising as a result of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded
in the income statement as expense. The premium received is recognised in the income statement in ‘on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves
Share Capital

Increment in Share Capital results with the issue of Right Share, Further Public Offers and Bonus Share. However,
proposed bonus shares are not shown as increment to share capital until approved by annual general meeting.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion
of the entity. Dividends for the year that are approved after the statement of financial position date are disclosed as an
event after the reporting date.

Statutory Reserves:

Statutory reserves represent the mandatory reserves maintained by the Bank/subsidiary as required by the Regulator
or under other applicable laws & regulations and are not available for distribution as dividend to the shareholders. This
includes general reserve, exchange fluctuation reserve, capital redemption reserve, interest capitalization reserves,
corporate social responsibility reserve, employee training reserve and other reserves as may be notified from time to
time.

Equity reserves:
1. Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the cumulative net earnings or profit available for distribution after accounting for all
mandatory reserves and appropriations.

2. Regulatory Reserve

The Regulatory Reserve is mandated under directives issued by the Regulator for adjustment of specified differences
on account of initial period of adoption of NFRS in order to ensure a fair representation of financial statements. The
Reserve is required to be created by adjustment to Retained Earnings. The amount in Regulatory Reserve is not
allowed to be considered for Capital Adequacy purposes.

3. Other Reserves

Other reserves recorded in equity (other comprehensive income) on the Bank’s/subsidiary statement of financial
position include:

e ‘Fair Value Reserve’ comprises of changes in fair value of investments, net of deferred tax, recognized through
Other Comprehensive Income.

e Actuarial Reserve comprises of actuarial gains/losses of defined benefit plans as required by NAS 19- Employee
Benefits.

e Debenture Redemption Reserve comprises of equal amount apportioned out of profit each year throughout
the term of issued debenture. This reserve isn’t distributable until the maturity of the issued debenture.

e Employee Training Fund comprises of amount expensed less than that required by regulator. The Bank is
required to incur expenses towards employee training and development for an amount that is equivalent to at
least 3% of the preceding year’s employee salary and allowance. Any shortfall amount in meeting this mandatory
expense requirement in the current year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund through appropriation
of net profit and the amount shall accumulate in the fund available for related expenses in the subsequent year.
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e Corporate Social Responsibility reserve comprises of amount allocated each year for fulfilling the banks corporate
social duty. The Bank is required to appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund annually.

3.20 Earnings per share including diluted
The bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity-holders
of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earnings per Share is determined by adjusting both the profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares if
any.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and
the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of EPS.

3.21 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing services (Business Segments) or
in providing services within a particular economic environment (Geographical Segment) which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards NFRS 8 on ‘Segmental Reporting’, segmental information
is presented in respect of the Bank based on Bank management and internal reporting structure.

The Bank’s segmental reporting is based on the geographical operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
of respective segment.

3.22 Investment in Associates

The Bank’s investment in its associates, entities in which the Bank has significant influence, is accounted for using the
equity method. Significant influence is considered to exist where the bank has representation in the Board and participates
in policy making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distribution. Under the equity
method, the investment in the associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognize changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.

Due to the fact that associates are yet to adopt NFRS in preparing their financial statement, there is no uniformity in
the accounting policy adopted by the associates and the bank. Accordingly, as per the carve out issued by ICAN
investment in associates have been accounted at cost. However, equity method has been used for accounting of
investment in associates in preparing the consolidated financials. Accordingly share of income received from associates
recognized in standalone financial statements of the bank has been derecognized since share of net worth prior to
distribution is consolidated.

3.23 Rounding Off and Comparative Figures

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese figure, rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figure have
been reclassified/ rearranged/ regrouped to facilitate their comparison, where necessary.
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4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent are total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at
call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the licensed institution in the
management of its short term commitments. In addition to cash in hand and current balance with other BFls, placements
with original maturity of less than 3 months, outstanding at the reporting date and accrued interest receivable on such
placements has been categorized as cash and cash equivalent.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cash in Hand 2,697,054,231 2,194,566,293 2,697,048,883 2,194,556,298

Balance with B/Fls
Money at Call and Short Notice
Other

1,935,835,830
1,010,108,818
1,699,928,621

Total 7,342,927,500

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

1,124,274,914

3,649,232,822
6,968,074,029

1,824,052,459
1,010,108,818
1,699,928,621

7,231,138,781

1,124,274,914

3,649,232,822
6,968,064,034

Due from NRB are cash balances held with NRB in local and foreign currency. The total balance with NRB is further classified
into balances held for statutory purpose(to maintain CRR) and free balances which is classified as other deposit and receivable

from NRB.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Statutory balances with NRB 2,359,263,200 2,818,034,800 2,359,263,200 2,818,034,800
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 10,048,552,615 2,065,500,425 10,048,552,615  2,065,500,425
Total 12,407,815,815 4,883,535,225 12,407,815,815 4,883,535,225

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions are interest bearing balances held in local and foreign banks. Placements
are used as an instrument to manage liquid assets. Placements are held at amortized cost using effective interest rate.
Placement with original maturity of less than 3 months are considered to be highly liquid financial instruments and hence,
classified into cash and cash equivalents and not shown under placement.

Group Bank
. Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Particulars
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Placement with domestic B/Fls 543,902,672 220,824,440 543,902,672 220,824,440
Placement with foreign B/Fls 5,798,271,118 2,700,900,856 5,798,271,118 2,700,900,855

Less: Allowance for Impairment -

Total 6,342,173,790

2,921,725,296

6,342,173,790

2,921,725,295
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4.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include various hedging instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. All proprietary deals are shown as held for
trading whereas those entered into on behalf of customers are shown as held for risk management.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - - - -
Currency swap - - - -
Forward exchange contract 70,589,240 52,925,200 70,589,240 52,925,200
Others - - - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - - - -
Currency swap - - - -
Forward exchange contract 45,031,977 74,220,074 45,031,977 74,220,074
Other - - - -
Total 115,621,217 127,145,274 115,621,217 127,145,274

4.5 Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the entity acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as part
of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. Other trading asset includes non derivative financial assets. It
includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose. The bank holds no such assets. However, subsidiary trades in such assets to gain short term benefits.

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Teasury bills - - - -
Government bonds - - - -
NRB Bonds - - - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - - - -
Equities 6,202,746 - - -
Other - - - -

Total 6,202,746 - - -

Pledged - - - -
Non-pledged - - - -

4.6 Loan and advances to B/Fls

Loans and advances to BFI are loans and advances provided to micro- financial institution as a part of deprived sector lending.
Loans and advances to BFI are short-term in nature. Such loans and advances are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently amortized using the effective interest rate. For calculating effective interest rate initial loan documentation fees
hasn't been taken into consideration since its impact is not material.

Impairment provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed
by the regulator and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by
ICAN.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loans to microfinance institutions 5,048,449,926  4,820,831,795 5,048,449,926 4,820,831,795
Other 527,324 527,324 527,324 527,324
Less: Allowances for impairment (50,901,984) (48,606,402) (50,901,984) (48,606,402)
Total 4,998,075,266 4,772,752,717 4,998,075,266 4,772,752,717

Loan and advances to B/Fls have been measured at amortized cost. The detail break-up of the same has been provided
below:

Loans and advances (Principal) 5,037,993,289 4,808,435,098 5,037,993,289 4,808,435,098
Add: Accrued Interest 10,983,961 12,924,020 10,983,961 12,924,020
Total Amortized Cost 5,048,977,250 4,821,359,119 5,048,977,250 4,821,359,119

*Based on NAS 39, Loans and advances to banks and financial institutions are individually tested for impairment. No any
specific impairment has arisen for the year and the previous years. Further, there is no figure for collective impairment for
loans and advances to BFls as no historical loss ratio exists for such loans and advances.

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at Sawan 1 48,606,402 37,154,322 48,606,402 37,154,322
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 35,408,740 42,606,402 35,408,740 42,606,402

Recoveries/(reversal) (33,113,158) (31,154,322) (33,113,158) (31,154,322)
Amount written off - - - -
Balance at Asar end 50,901,984 48,606,402 50,901,984 48,606,402

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances extended to the customers and staffs other than loan which has been classified as loan to BFls as well
as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances and prepaid staff expense have been presented
as loans and advances to customers. Loans and advances are classified as financial instrument held at amortized cost having
floating rate of interest. So, initially loans and advances are measured at fair value then amortized using the effective interest
rate. For calculating effective interest rate initial loan documentation fees hasn't been taken into consideration since its impact
is not material.

Staff loans and Advances are provided at below market rate of interest, hence to initially measure them at fair value the total
cash flow from such loans and advances are discounted to present value by using the average base rate of past 13 months
as discount rate. The difference between the fair value of staff loans and advances and the loan amount disbursed has been
recognized as deferred employee benefits and amortized throughout the loan period.

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 104,043,450,400 94,708,968,682 104,043,450,400 94,708,968,682
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment (1,663,720,605) (1,023,223,669) (1,663,720,605) (1,023,223,669)
Individual impairment (651,262,631) (988,426,653) (651,262,631) (988,426,653)
Net amount 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360 101,728,467,164 92,697,318,360
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4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

The bank offers a variety of loan products to clients. The bank assesses the requirement of the borrower in terms of amount
and nature and then records loan under appropriate product category. Product wise loan break up is as follows.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Product
Term loans 21,847,112,745 16,738,671,961 21,847,112,745 16,738,671,961
Overdraft 8,776,844,779 8,476,020,784 8,776,844,779 8,476,020,784
Trust receipt/Import loans 13,923,827,477 13,384,670,534 13,923,827,477 13,384,670,534
Demand and other working capital loans 36,382,830,265 33,287,891,943  36,382,830,265 33,287,891,943

Personal residential loans
Real estate loans

Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased

Staff loans

Other

Sub total
Interest receivable

Grand total

4,161,568,915
3,905,051,218
1,589,554,326
7,394,721,886
323,701,928
30,108,858
680,717,839
3,921,524,923

102,937,565,159

1,105,885,241

104,043,450,400

4,257,821,340
3,752,914,054
1,505,654,965
7,524,061,323
325,805,168
91,535,955
602,465,940
4,052,822,050

94,000,336,016

708,632,666

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

4,161,568,915
3,905,051,218
1,589,554,326
7,394,721,886
323,701,928
30,108,858
680,717,839
3,921,524,923

102,937,565,159

1,105,885,241

94,708,968,682 104,043,450,400

4,257,821,340
3,752,914,054
1,505,654,965
7,524,061,323
325,805,168
91,535,955
602,465,940
4,052,822,050

94,000,336,016

708,632,666

94,708,968,682

In addition to NPR, the bank also offers loan on other currencies within the regulatory framework. The detail is as follows.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Nepalese rupee 92,490,433,996 87,040,353,218  92,490,433,996  87,040,353,218
Indian rupee - 6,807,037 - 6,807,037
United State dollar 11,542,691,491  7,652,856,455  11,542,691,491 7,652,856,455
Great Britain pound 10,324,913 8,830,433 10,324,913 8,830,433
Euro - 104,839 - 104,839
Japenese yen - - - -
Chinese yuan - - - -
Other - 16,700 - 16,700
Total 104,043,450,400 94,708,968,682 104,043,450,400 94,708,968,682

4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

All loan and advances are backed by some form of collateral. The bank has an authority matrix wherein authority to approve
loans vis-a-vis collateral requirement is stated for various levels of authority. Loan categorization on the basis of type of

collateral is as follows.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 101,331,965,238 92,090,948,009 101,331,965,238 92,090,948,009
Gold and silver - - - -
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls - - - -
Government guarantee - - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank 30,732,557 184,819,240 30,732,557 184,819,240
Collateral of export document - 342,260 - 342,260
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 679,791,368 761,060,748 679,791,368 761,060,748
Collateral of Governement securities - - - -
Counter guarantee - 10,527,324 - 10,527,324

Personal guarantee
Other collateral

Sub total
Unsecured

Grand total

2,000,961,237
104,043,450,400

104,043,450,400

1,661,271,101
94,708,968,682

94,708,968,682

2,000,961,237
104,043,450,400

104,043,450,400

1,661,271,101
94,708,968,682

94,708,968,682

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Allowance for impairment has been charged as the higher of the impairment as per NRB Directives and impairment as per
Nepal Financial Reporting Standard.

The total impairment as per NRB Directive is higher than the total impairment as per NFRS. Impairment as per both guidelines
has been disclosed below.

Allowance for impairment as per NRB Directive

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 988,426,653 971,511,439 988,426,653 971,511,439
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 274,995,079 138,154,752 274,995,079 138,154,752

Recoveries/(reversal) during the year (239,261,855)  (121,239,538) (239,261,855) (121,239,538)
Write-offs (372,897,246) - (872,897,246) -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - - - -
impairment
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 651,262,631 988,426,653 651,262,631 988,426,653
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 1,023,223,669 917,968,864 1,023,223,669 917,968,864
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year 640,496,936 105,254,805 640,496,936 105,254,805

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - - = -
impairment

Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 1,663,720,605 1,023,223,669 1,663,720,605 1,023,223,669

Total allowances for impairment 2,314,983,236 2,011,650,322 2,314,983,236 2,011,650,322

28th Annual Report | 67



HBL

, frre % ffs
imalayan Bank Ltd.

Collective allowance for impairment is the total impairment for loans and advances categorized as pass and watchlist whereas
specific allowance for impairment is total impairment for loans and advances classified as restructured, substandard, doubtful
and loss.

Allowances for impairment based on NAS 39 using Incurred Loss Model

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 871,491,921 590,100,860 871,491,921 590,100,860
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 53,247,077 281,391,062 53,247,077 281,391,062

Recoveries/(reversal) during the year - - - -
Write-offs - - - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - - -
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 924,738,998 871,491,921 924,738,998 871,491,921
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 121,874,193 145,262,546 121,874,193 145,262,546
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year 304,645,772 (23,388,353) 304,645,772 (23,388,353)
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - - -
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 426,519,965 121,874,193 426,519,965 121,874,193
Total allowances for impairment 1,351,258,963 993,366,114 1,351,258,963 993,366,115

4.8 Investment securities

As a part of strategic management of assets and for meeting various regulatory and other legal requirements, investments
are made in different equity and debt instruments. Investments are categorized as investment measured at amortized cost
and investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Debt securities are classified as investment
measured at amortized cost and equity investments where the holding ratio is less than 20% and aren't recognized as
associates are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

In the schedule 4.8.1 Debt Securities represents the investments in foreign bonds. Foreign bonds are measured at amortized
cost using effective interest rate. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. For the purpose of calculating effective interest rate premium or discount paid on
such bond has been considered.

Fair value of investment at fair value through OCI are valued using the fair value hierarchy as disclosed in notes 2.4 (b)

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investment securities measured at amortized cost  18,192,773,267 16,418,996,469 18,173,362,145 16,418,996,469
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 71,329,705 47,205,440 68,304,555 47,205,440

Total 18,264,102,972 16,466,201,909 18,241,666,700 16,466,201,909
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4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Debt securities 608,963,445 1,056,581,788 608,963,445 1,056,581,788
Government bonds - - - -
Government treasury bills 7,733,016,974 6,287,884,146 7,733,016,974 6,287,884,146
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 9,831,381,726  9,074,530,535 9,831,381,726 9,074,530,535
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - - -
Other 19,411,122 - = -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - - -
Total 18,192,773,267 16,418,996,469 18,173,362,145 16,418,996,469

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities 64,356,686 40,867,281 61,331,536 40,867,281
Unquoted equity securities 6,973,019 6,338,159 6,973,019 6,338,159
Total 71,329,705 47,205,440 68,304,555 47,205,440

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

Investment in quoted equities are measured at fair value using the closing market price of such equity at the reporting date.
For the purpose of valuating shares of Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sansthan Ltd. which are promoter shares, 60% of
the market price of the public share of that institution has been considered since the bank holds promoter share in the entity.

Investment in unquoted equities has been valued at their cost

Further, the Bank possess 5,860 Class C shares of VISA Card International and 7,320 Class B shares of Master Card
International, which has not been recognized in the books as the shares do not have any carrying cost. Also, the shares are
not tradable & hence the fair value of such shares are not available to account for them at fair value.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cost Fair Value Cost  |Fair Value Cost  Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity

Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

143,994 shares of Rs. 100 each

Siddhartha Equity Fund
967,748 shares of Rs. 10 each

NMB 50 Mutual Fund
500,000 shares of Rs. 10 each

250,000 shares of Rs. 10 each

Citizens Mutual Fund 1
2,515 shares of Rs. 10 each

Sunrise Mutual Fund
50,000 shares of Rs. 10 each

VISA Card International
5860 Common Stock of C Class

Mastercard Worldwide
7302 Common Stock of B Class

Total

7,799,800 46,654,056 7,799,800 31,102,704 7,799,800 46,654,056 7,799,800 31,102,704

9,677,480 9,677,480 9,677,480 9,764,577 9,677,480 9,677,480 9,677,480 9,764,577

5,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -

2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - . . .
25150 25,150 - - - . . .

500,000 500,000 - - - = - -

25,502,430 64,356,686 17,477,280 40,867,281 22,477,280 61,331,536 17,477,280 40,867,281
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Investment in unquoted equity

Swift SC
6 shares

Credit Information Center Limited
132,651 shares of Rs. 100 each

Nepal Clearing House Limited
49,680 shares of Rs. 100 each

National Banking Institute Limited
18,348 shares of Rs. 100 each

Total

4.9 Current tax assets

1,214,859/ 1,214,859 1,214,859 1 1,214,859 1,214,859 1,214,859

1,423,300/ 1,423,300 1,423,300 1,423,300 1,423,300 1,423,300

2,500,000/ 2,500,000 2,500,000 | 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

1,834,860/ 1,834,860 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,834,860 1,834,860

6,973,019 6,973,019 6,338,159 6,338,159 6,973,019 6,973,019

1,214,859 1,214,859

1,423,300 1,423,300

2,500,000/ 2,500,000

1,200,000 1,200,000

6,338,159 6,338,159

The bank being a financial institution is subject to income tax at 30%. Taxable income is separately determined in line with
the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058 and is generally different from accounting profit. Tax liability on such taxable income
is shown as current tax liability. Further, additional tax liability may arise on re-assessment of tax liability by tax authorities in

subsequent years. Any such additional liability is charged to income statement in the year of re assessment.

The bank is required to pay income tax in advance and the same is retained as advance and not set off against liability until
such time the tax liability is determined/ confirmed by the tax authorities and duly accepted by the bank. The current position
of advance tax and provision made for taxes is shown below.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 7,675,658,944 6,566,872,091 7,669,916,082 6,564,117,563
Tax assets of prior periods - 6,064,553 - 6,064,553
7,675,658,944  6,572,936,644 7,669,916,082 6,570,182,116
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 7,320,677,817 6,341,427,283 7,318,421,065 6,339,170,531
Tax liabilities of prior periods - 6,064,553 - 6,064,553
7,320,677,817  6,347,491,836 7,318,421,065 6,345,235,084
Total Current Tax Assets 354,981,127 225,444,808 351,495,017 224,947,032

4.10 Investment in subsidiaries

An entity over which the bank holds controlling interest shall be recognized as subsidiary of the institute. The bank has
established a wholly owned subsidiary namely Himalayan Capital Limited for carrying out merchant banking activities.

Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs.
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries 200,000,000 200,000,000
Total investment 200,000,000 200,000,000
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount 200,000,000 200,000,000
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4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd. - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
........................................... Ltd. i i i i
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
Total = = - -
4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Himalayan Capital Ltd. 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 -
2,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 -
4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank
Bank
Percentage of ownership held by the bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Himalayan Capital Ltd. 100 % 100 %

4.11 Investment in associates

The bank has investment in both quoted and unquoted share of different associates. Associates are those entities in which
the bank has significant influence but not control over the financial and operating policies. An entity is generally deemed to
have significant influence over another entity if it holds 20% - 50% ownership of the entity. An entity can still be an associate
even if holds less than 20% of the share capital if there are other circumstances that suggest significant influence. Investments
given below has been classified as investment in associate although holding in such entity are less than 20% because
Himalayan Bank has representation in the Board of Directors of the entity which is deemed to be having significant influence.
The bank has accounted investment in associates using equity method for preparing its consolidated financial statements.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investment in quoted associates 1,257,527,556 1,088,073,988 97,661,700 97,661,700
Investment in unquoted associates 17,382,826 16,591,856 98,124,000 98,124,000
Total investment 1,274,910,382 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
Less: Impairment allowances - - - -
Net carrying amount 1,274,910,382 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
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4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 48,000,000 239,914,018 48,000,000 222,890,816 48,000,000 - 48,000,000 -
830,144 shares of Rs. 100 each
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,793,300 375,895,806 12,793,300| 316,637,488 12,793,300 - 12,793,300 -
1,683,488 shares of Rs.100 each"
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 24,377,900 382,698,225 24,377,900 337,727,821 24,377,900 - 24,377,900 -
1,797,451 shares of Rs. 100 each
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,490,500 259,019,507 | 12,490,500 210,817,863 12,490,500 - 12,490,500 -
952,603 shares of Rs. 100 each"
Total 97,661,700 1,257,527,556 | 97,661,700 1,088,073,988 97,661,700 - 97,661,700 -

4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost  |Fair Value
Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. 98,124,000 17,382,826 | 98,124,000/16,591,856 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -
230,880 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 98,124,000 17,382,826 | 98,124,000 16,591,856 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -

4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Percentage of ownership Percentage of ownership
held by the Group held by the Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 9.23% 9.23% 9.23% 9.23%
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11.22% 11.22% 11.22% 11.22%
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11.98% 11.98% 11.98% 11.98%
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12.02% 12.02% 12.02% 12.02%
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 6.16% 9.23% 6.16% 9.23%
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs.
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 239,914,018 222,890,816
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 375,895,806 316,637,488
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 382,698,225 337,727,821
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 259,019,507 210,817,863
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 17,382,826 16,591,856
Total 1,274,910,382 1,104,665,844
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The net worth of the associates has been computed on the basis of information available from the unaudited financial on the
date of preparation of financial statements.

Opening net Chargedto | Closing book

Associate Cost book value as | profit and loss | value as on
per unaudited Asar 2077
financial

RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 48,000,000 222,890,816 17,023,202 239,914,018
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,793,300 316,637,488 59,258,318 375,895,806
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 24,377,900 337,727,821 44,970,404 382,698,225
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,490,500 210,817,863 48,201,644 259,019,507
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 98,124,000 16,591,856 790,970 17,382,826
Total 195,785,700 1,104,665,844 170,244,538 1,274,910,382

* 3.61% of holding in Nirdhan Utthan Bittiya Santha and 3.25% of holding in Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha are in the
form of public shares. Rest of the holding in associates are in the form of promoter shares.

4.12 Investment properties

The asset pledged as collateral which has been taken over by the bank while settling its bad loans are non banking assets
and have been categorized at investment properties. Investment properties are generally measured at fair value. The initial
takeover value of the investment properties is lower of Panchakrit Mulya and total dues which is determined as per the NRB
guidelines. The same value has been considered as the fair value of such asset. The bank doesn't intend to hold such asset
for long term and is actively searching for buyers.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Sawan 1 109,134,713 2,299,307 109,134,713 2,299,307
Addition/disposal during the year 270,667,500 106,835,406 270,667,500 106,835,406

Net changes in fair value during the year - - - -
Adjustment/transfer - - - R

Net amount 379,802,213 109,134,713 379,802,213 109,134,713

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Sawan 1 ; - - -
Addition/disposal during the year _ - - -
Adjustment/transfer i, , i, R
Accumulated depreciation - - - R
Accumulated impairment loss - - - -

Net amount R R - R
Total 379,802,213 109,134,713 379,802,213 109,134,713
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Assets received under grant

The bank has received grant from SAKCHYAM NEPAL, under SAKCHYAM NEPAL ACCESS TO FINANCE project in the form
of reimbursement of cost of establishing a branch in remote areas. The project aims to work with the public and private sector
to leverage access and facilitate financial sector development in Nepal for small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and for poor
people. The accounting policy adopted for the recognition of such grant asset has been disclosed in the accounting policies
of the bank in note 3.7 (F). The detail accounting of the assets under grant for the year is as follows.

Particulars Initial | Accumulated Remaining Grant Depreciation Deferred
value of |Depreciation| Book Value A Received charged and Income
asset on such of such taken to
asset asset income till
FY 2076/77

31.84% of FA and Leasehold
development cost of Chededaha
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 3,012,670 272,195 2,740,475 959,184 86,661 872,523

31.84% of FA and Leasehold
development cost of Kumakh
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 3,017,636 435,067 2,582,569 960,814 138,517 822,297

31.84% of FA and Leasehold
development cost of Swamikartik
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 4,231,415 5,800 4,225,615 1,347,162 1,847 | 1,345,315

31.84% of FA and Leasehold
development cost of Jagannath
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 3,945,371 5,800 3,939,571 1,245,348 1,831 | 1,243,517
Total 14,207,092 718,862 @ 13,488,230 = 4,512,508 228,856 4,283,652
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The entity’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. Such assets are accounted using the policy of the bank

as disclosed in notes 3.8.

Goodwill arises during the purchase of another entity or during the consolidation with the subsidiary. It is the excess of value
of asset received over the value of cost incurred to purchase the asset. Bank doesn’t have any such goodwill.

Group
Software
Particulars Goodwill Other Total Asar end
Purchased Developed

Cost:
As on Sawan 1, 2075 - 597,518,877 - 597,518,877
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 66,209,101 - 66,209,101

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 663,727,978 - 663,727,978
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 70,594,815 - 70,594,815

Capitalization - - - i,
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 734,322,793 - 734,322,793
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2075 - 511,666,189 - 511,666,189
Amortization charge for the Year ) 34,384,442 ) 34,384,442
Impairment for the year } } - -
Disposals } } ) )
Adjustment ) ; ) ;
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 546,050,631 - 546,050,631
Amortization charge for the Year - 36,316,356 - 36,316,356
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 582,366,987 - 582,366,987
Net book value:
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 85,852,688 - 85,852,688
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 117,677,347 - 117,677,347
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 151,955,806 - 151,955,806
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Bank
Software
Particulars Goodwill Other Total Asar end
Purchased Developed

Cost:
As on Sawan 1, 2075 - 597,518,877 - 597,518,877
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 66,209,101 - 66,209,101

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 663,727,978 - 663,727,978
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 69,557,588 - 69,557,588

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 733,285,566 - 733,285,566
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2075 - 511,666,189 - 511,666,189
Amortization charge for the Year - 34,384,442 - 34,384,442
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 546,050,631 - 546,050,631
Amortization charge for the Year - 36,133,449 - 36,133,449
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 582,184,080 - 582,184,080
Net book value:
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 85,852,688 - 85,852,688
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 117,677,347 - 117,677,347
Balance as on Asar end 2077 - 151,101,486 - 151,101,486
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4.15 Deffered Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Group Bank
Asar 2077 Asar 2077
Particulars Deferred | Deferred Tax Net Deferred Deferred Deferred Tax Net Deferred
Tax Assets | Liabilities Tax Tax Assets Liabilities Tax
Assets/ Assets/
(Liabilities) (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - (891,086) (891,086) - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers -1(178,846,382)  (178,846,382) - (178,846,382) (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - - - - -
Investment securities 38,524 (11,656,277)| (11,617,753) - (11,656,277) (11,656,277)
Property & equipment - (9,583,407) (9,583,407) - (9,177,248) (9,177,248)
Employees' defined benefit plan 84,859,469 - 84,859,469 84,859,469 - 84,859,469
Lease liabilities 19,815,695 - 19,815,695 19,815,695 - 19,815,695
Provisions - - - o - -
Other temporary differences - - - - - -
Deferred tax on temporary 104,713,688 (200,977,152) (96,263,464) 104,675,164 (200,570,993) (95,895,829)
differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of 230,355 - 230,355 = = =

unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in
tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities)
as on year end of Asar 2077

(96,033,109)

(95,895,829)

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as - -| (98,894,441) - - (98,843,796)
on Sawan 1, 2076
Origination/(Reversal) during - - 2,861,332 = = 2,947,967
the year
Deferred tax expense/(income) - - 7,500,706 - - 7,587,244
recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) - - (4,639,277) - - (4,639,277)
recognised in other
comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) - - - - - -
recognised in directly in equity

Continue ......
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Group
Asar 2076

Bank
Asar 2076

Particulars

Deferred | Deferred Tax Net Deferred

Deferred | Deferred Tax

Net Deferred

Tax Assets | Liabilities Tax Tax Assets @ Liabilities Tax
Assets/ Assets/
(Liabilities) (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/FIs - (891,086) (891,086) - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers - 1(178,846,382) (178,846,382) - 1 (178,846,382) | (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - - - - -
Investment securities 297,583 (7,017,000) (6,719,417) 297,583 (7,017,000) (6,719,417)
Property & equipment - (2,556,086) (2,556,086) - (2,505,441) (2,505,441)
Employees' defined benefit plan 81,740,253 - 81,740,253 81,740,253 - 81,740,253
Lease liabilities 8,378,277 - 8,378,277 8,378,277 - 8,378,277
Provisions - - - - - -
Other temporary differences - - - - - -
Deferred tax on temporary 90,416,113 | (189,310,554) (98,894,441) 90,416,113 (189,259,909) (98,843,796)
differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of - - - -
unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax - - - -
rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (98,894,441) - -/ (98,843,796)

as on year end of Asar 2076

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on
Sawan 1, 2075

Origination/(Reversal) during the
year

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in directly in equity

(131,264,033)

32,369,592

22,760,671

9,608,921

(131,264,033)

32,420,237

22,811,316

9,608,921
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4.16 Other assets

Other Assets include tangible and intangible assets that hasn’t been classified above. It consists primarily of accounts
receivable, bills receivable, prepayments and other accrued income.

Assets held for sale are the assets that the bank intends to sell and is actively involved in finding the prospectus buyer at
the present condition of the assets.

Other non- banking assets are assets taken over by bank while settling its bad loans other than land and building as such

land and buildings are categorized as investment properties.

Income tax deposits are deposits made by the bank for disputed income taxes which are under administrative review.

Deferred employee expenditure are prepaid employee expenses recognized while recognizing staff loans and advances at

fair value.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Assets held for sale - - - -
Other non banking assets - - - -
Bills receivable - - - -
Accounts receivable 86,774,364 212,811,808 86,774,364 213,388,183
Accrued income 238,513 - - -
Prepayments and deposit 173,613,851 95,826,531 173,513,851 95,825,260
Income tax deposit 101,489,000 101,489,000 101,489,000 101,489,000
Deferred employee expenditure 621,481,799 569,784,214 621,481,799 569,784,214
Other 146,753,706 94,537,655 146,724,706 94,537,655

Total

1,130,351,233

1,074,449,208

1,129,983,720

1,075,024,312

Provision against account receivable is made where the regulator so requires or where the management is doubtful regarding
recovery of the receivables and the balances are shown net off such specific provisions made. The bank till date has made
a provision of Rs. 278,353,856 for such docubtful receivables.

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to BFl include deposits from A, B, C and D class financial institutions and interbank bank borrowings. Further accounts
operated by A, B, C and D class institution for settlement and clearing purpose has been categorized as settlement and
clearing accounts. They are accounted at amortized cost using effective interest rate.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Money market deposits - - -

Interbank borrowing - - - -
Other deposits from BFls 5,999,015,240 3,472,102,792 5,999,015,240 3,472,102,792
Settlement and clearing accounts 596,853,848 230,813,554 596,853,848 230,813,554
Total 6,595,869,088 3,702,916,346 6,595,869,088 3,702,916,346
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4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Amount Payable to NRB for refinancing, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort facility, securities sold under repurchase
agreement and any other payable to NRB has been included as due to NRB. Due to NRB are accounted at amortized cost
using effective interest rate.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Refinance from NRB 155,736,786 560,812,042 155,736,786 560,812,042
Standing Liquidity Facility - - - -
Lender of last resort facility from NRB - - - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - -
Other payable to NRB - - - -
Total 155,736,786 560,812,042 155,736,786 560,812,042

4.19 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include various hedging instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. All proprietary deals are shown as held for
trading whereas those entered into on behalf of customers are shown as held for risk management.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - - - -
Currency swap - - - -
Forward exchange contract 21,390,000 6,540,600 21,390,000 6,540,600
Others - - - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - - - -
Currency swap - - - -
Forward exchange contract 54,153,132 - 54,153,132 -
Other - - - -
Total 75,543,132 6,540,600 75,543,132 6,540,600

4.20 Deposits from customers

Deposit from customer are accounted at amortized cost using applicable interest rate.

Institutional customers are government institution, public limited companies, savings and credit co-operatives and funds
operated by such entities while rest of the deposits are grouped as individual customers as per the definition given by the
regulator.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Institutions customers:
Term deposits 25,489,598,394 22,457,438,100 25,539,598,395 22,652,438,100
Call deposits 6,086,094,920 5,243,925,085 6,203,041,941 5,243,925,085
Current deposits 2,611,849,725 1,887,158,657 2,612,330,512 1,894,417,493
Other 1,689,608,615 1,632,189,622 1,689,608,615 1,632,189,622

Individual customers:
Term deposits

31,437,470,153 27,971,128,883

31,437,470,153

27,971,128,883

Saving deposits 43,836,267,761 38,494,636,993 43,836,267,761 38,494,636,993
Current deposits 9,994,001,126  7,793,398,376 9,994,001,126 7,793,398,376
Other 3,952,063,187  3,704,925,881 3,952,063,187 3,704,925,881
Total 125,096,953,881 109,184,801,597 125,264,381,690 109,387,060,433
4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Nepalese rupee 117,553,302,320 102,626,515,024 117,720,730,129 102,828,773,860
Indian rupee 31,837,034 - 31,837,034 -
United State dollar 7,121,787,710 6,209,604,362 7,121,787,710 6,209,604,362
Great Britain pound 93,843,163 111,244,500 93,843,163 111,244,500
Euro 214,834,637 174,910,072 214,834,637 174,910,072
Japenese yen 77,761,269 56,995,240 77,761,269 56,995,240
Chinese yuan 66,043 208,522 66,043 208,522
Other 3,521,705 5,323,877 3,521,705 5,323,877
Total 125,096,953,881 109,184,801,597 125,264,381,690 109,387,060,433

4.21 Borrowing

Borrowings are long term domestic and foreign loans availed by the bank. As on the reporting date the bank doesn’t have

any borrowings from any other institution.

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077

Asar 2076

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institutions
Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions

Sub total
Total
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4.22 Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provision for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation,
credit commitments and guarantees etc. are presented under this account head. Provision for redundancy is benefits payable
as a result of employment being terminated or based on a dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees'
termination benefits like voluntary retirement scheme are presented under this account head. Provision for restructuring
includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations or relocation in a region, changes in management
structure, fundamental reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank's operations etc.
Provision for onerous contract are recognized when expected benefits to be derived by the licensed institution from a contract
is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Provisions for redundancy - - - -
Provision for restructuring - - = -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - - -
Onerous contracts - - - -
Other provision - - - -
Total B ) . -
4.22.1: Movement in provision Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Balance at Sawan 1 - 2,299,307 - 2,299,307

Provisions made during the year - - - -
Provisions used during the year - - - -
Provisions reversed during the year - (2,299,307) - (2,299,307)
Unwind of discount - - - -

Balance at Asar end - - - R

4.23 Other liabilities

Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations and liability for long service leave are net liabilities of the bank against
gratuity and long service leave. Defined benefit liabilities of these nature are valuated using actuarial calculation. Gratuity is
funded benefit plan whereas liability against long service leave is non funded obligation. Bank has separate approved retirement
fund maintained for gratuity payment. The obligation against gratuity as shown in the books is the shortfall in asset of retirement
fund to the total liability of the fund. The bank transfers this shortfall amount in fund every fiscal year after determination of
the amount by actuary.

The subsidiary is managed under a management contract and hence there is no long term employee liability.
Liabilities against deferred grant income are grant received from Sakchyam Nepal which are yet to be recognized as income.

Other Liabilities include bills payable, creditors and accruals, interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unpaid dividend,
employee bonus payable and other liabilities.

Liabilities are recognized at fair value of the expected outflow to the best estimate of management.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 71,004,112 90,752,567 71,004,112 90,752,567
Liability for long-service leave 282,864,897 272,467,511 282,864,897 272,467,511
Short-term employee benefits - - - -
Bills payable 49,137,542 124,056,580 49,137,542 124,056,580
Creditors and accruals 24,555,738 23,630,563 24,555,738 21,871,350
Interest Payable on deposits 867,000,772 571,244,111 868,244,162 573,104,453
Interest payable on borrowing 622,947 1,996,519 622,947 1,996,519
Liabilities on defered grant income 4,283,652 1,288,857 4,283,652 1,288,857
Unpaid Dividend 291,893,984 227,265,450 291,893,984 227,265,450
Liabilities under Finance Lease - - - -
Employee bonus payable 395,376,223 437,017,844 395,376,223 437,017,844

Other
Total

4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

1,674,111,534
3,660,851,401

1,027,200,827

2,776,920,829

1,556,593,981

3,544,577,238

1,027,200,827

2,777,021,958

The liability for the defined benefit obligation is the present value of defined benefit obligation as determined by the actuary

less the fair value of the plan assets.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Present value of unfunded obligations - - - -
Present value of funded obligations 603,613,792 569,089,362 603,613,792 569,089,362
Total present value of obligations 603,613,792 569,089,362 603,613,792 569,089,362
Fair value of plan assets 532,609,680 478,336,795 532,609,680 478,336,795
Present value of net obligations 71,004,112 90,752,567 71,004,112 90,752,567
Recognised liability for defined benefit 71,004,112 90,752,567 71,004,112 90,752,567

obligations

4.23.2: Plan assets

Assets held by the retirement fund can be considered as plan assets if, the fund is legally separate from the reporting entity
and exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in
bankruptcy), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity. Since HBL retirement fund is legally separable entity and the
amount in fund isn't available to the bank in case of bankruptcy, the bank deposit held by the retirement fund has been

recognized as plan assets.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Equity securities - - - -
Government bonds - - - -
Bank deposit 532,609,680 478,336,795 532,609,680 478,336,795
Other - - - -
Total 532,609,680 478,336,795 532,609,680 478,336,795

Actual return on plan assets
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4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1 569,089,362 524,723,683 569,089,362 524,723,683
Actuarial losses/(gains) (19,416,439) 7,492,799 (19,416,439) 7,492,799
Benefits paid by the plan (36,479,683) (48,947,390) (36,479,683) (48,947,390)
Current service costs and interest 90,420,552 85,820,270 90,420,552 85,820,270
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 603,613,792 569,089,362 603,613,792 569,089,362
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1 478,336,795 497,875,079 478,336,795 497,875,079
Contributions paid into the plan 90,752,567 26,848,604 90,752,567 26,848,604
Benefits paid during the year (36,479,683) (48,947,390) (36,479,683) (48,947,390)
Actuarial (losses)/gains - 2,560,502 - 2,560,502
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 532,609,679 478,336,795 532,609,679 478,336,795
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Current service costs 41,205,975 40,236,858 41,205,975 40,236,858
Interest on obligation 49,214,577 45,583,412 49,214,577 45,583,412
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Total 90,420,552 85,820,270 90,420,552 85,820,270
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Actuarial (gain)/loss on DBO (19,416,439) 7,492,799 (19,416,439) 7,492,799
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Assets - (2,560,502) - (2,560,502)
Total (19,416,439) 4,932,297 (19,416,439) 4,932,297
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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4.24 Debt securities issued

Debt Securities issued is the 7 year debenture issued by the bank in Bhadra 2076. The Debenture matures in Bhadra 2083.
The Debenture has been recognized at amortized cost using effective interest rate. Debenture redemption reserve has been
created as per the regulatory requirement. HBL Debenture 2077 of value Rs 600 Mil outstanding till previous fiscal year,
matured this year and the related redemption reserves created from previous years profit has become free and is available
for distribution.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 2,563,661,608 623,148,518 2,563,661,608 623,148,518
Total 2,563,661,608 623,148,518 2,563,661,608 623,148,518
4.25 Subordinated Liabilities
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Redeemable preference shares - - - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities - - - -
component)
Other - - - -
Total - - - -
4.26 Share capital
Share capital has been issued and recognized at par value.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Ordinary shares 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - - -
Total 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
4.26.1: Ordinary shares
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Authorized Capital
100,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Issued capital
93,722,814 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
Subscribed and paid up capital
93,722,814 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
Total 9,372,281,428 8,520,255,844
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4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Domestic ownership % Amount % | Amount % Amount % Amount

Nepal Government - - - -

“A” class licensed institutions - = - -

Other licensed intitutions - - - -

Other Institutions 65% 6,091,982,928 65%  5,538,166,299

Public 15% 1,405,842,214 15% 1,278,038,377

Other - - - .
Foreign ownership 20% 1,874,456,286 20% 1,704,051,169
Total 100% 9,372,281,428 100% @ 8,520,255,844

Foreign Ownership of 20% is held by Habib Bank Limited, Pakistan which is the joint venture partner of the bank from the
date of incorporation. Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5% Shares is as follows.

Name Percent
HABIB BANK LIMITED 20.00
KARMACHARI SANCHAYA KOSH 14.00
N. TRADING COMPANY P. LTD. 12.71
MUTUAL TRADING COMPANY P. LTD. 11.85
AVA INTERNATIONAL P. LTD 11.38
CHHAYA INTERNATIONAL P. LTD. 8.89
SHASHI KANT AGARWAL 2.65
SYAKAR CO. LTD. 0.99
ANJU KHETAN 0.77
SHARMA & CO. P. LTD. 0.66

* Shares held by Syakar Co. Ltd has been purchased by existing promoters after the reporting date.

4.27 Reserves

Reserves are appropriation of profit made for specific purpose under various regulatory and other local requirements.

Statutory General Reserve: 20% of the net profit of each fiscal year is mandatorily allocated to general reserve and the same
is retained till it becomes double of the paid up capital.

Exchange Equalization Reserve: 25% of revaluation gain on foreign currency is allocated to exchange equalization reserve.

Corporate Social responsibility reserve: 1% of net profit of each fiscal year is allocated to this reserve and it is utilized towards
corporate social responsibility expenditure in the following years.

Regulatory Reserve: Regulatory reserve is required to be made under specific instruction of the regulator. The reserve
represents allocation with respect to portion of, interest income on loans and advances recognized on accrual basis, fair value
recognized for investment properties (non banking assets) and actuarial gain or loss.

Fair Value Reserve: The fair value reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that
are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are
derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets are presented under this reserve.

Actuarial gain: Actuarial gain or loss that represents impact of change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee
obligations has been presented under this reserve.
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Other reserve: Other reserve includes debenture redemption reserve and employee training and development fund. 3% of
salary and allowance expense of previous fiscal year less actual staff training and development expenditure of this year is
required to be appropriated to this reserve in current fiscal year. However, underrelief given by the regulator, such appropriation
has not been made in current fiscal year. Debenture redemption reserve has been created by appropriating equal amount
from the profit of each period to this reserve. This amount will be release after the redemption of the Debenture. Reserve
amounting Rs. 600 Mil pertaining to the matured debenture has been accordingly released and is available for distribution.

Details on the movement of these reserve has been presented on statement of change in equity

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Statutory general reserve 4,255,230,911  3,737,834,765 4,254,234,117 3,736,889,575
Exchange equilisation reserve 39,056,093 39,056,093 39,056,093 39,056,093
Corporate social responsibility reserve 25,869,807 47,666,793 25,867,227 47,666,793
Capital redemption reserve - - - -
Regulatory reserve 942,902,991 799,473,664 942,902,991 799,473,664
Investment adjustment reserve 1,214,859 1,214,859 1,214,859 1,214,859
Capital reserve - - - -
Assets revaluation reserve - - - -
Fair value reserve 27,198,204 16,373,000 27,197,979 16,373,000
Dividend equalisation reserve - - - -
Actuarial gain - - - -
Special reserve - - - -
Other reserve 429,736,531 662,721,674 429,736,531 662,721,674
Total 5,721,209,396 5,304,340,848 5,720,209,797 5,303,395,658
Notes Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Other reserve includes:

Bond Redemption Reserve 367,014,857 600,000,000 367,014,857 600,000,000
Employee Training and Development Fund 62,721,674 62,721,674 62,721,674 62,721,674
Total Other Reserve 429,736,531 662,721,674 429,736,531 662,721,674

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or nhon-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Group Bank
Asar 2077

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2076

Contingent liabilities 29,177,262,225 28,172,428,806 29,177,262,225 28,172,428,806

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 3,988,465,036 4,373,250,690 3,988,465,036 4,373,250,690
Capital commitment 41,646,103 39,352,665 41,646,103 39,352,665
Lease commitment - 916,610,540 - 916,610,540
Litigation 489,145,515 357,473,868 489,145,515 357,473,868
Total 33,696,518,879 33,859,116,570 33,696,518,879 33,859,116,570
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4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Acceptance and documentary credit 9,422,577,714 11,590,699,137 9,422,577,714 11,590,699,137
Bills for collection 542,835,885 576,499,185 542,835,885 576,499,185
Forward exchange contracts 11,934,375,133 8,137,163,142  11,934,375,133 8,137,163,142
Guarantees 6,671,893,957  6,279,255,542 6,671,893,957 6,279,255,542

Underwriting commitment
Other commitments

Total

605,579,536  1,588,811,800
29,177,262,225 28,172,428,806

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

605,579,536  1,588,811,800
29,177,262,225 28,172,428,806

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Undisbursed amount of loans - - - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 3,988,465,036  4,373,250,690 3,988,465,036  4,373,250,690
Undrawn limits of credit cards - - - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - - - -
Total 3,988,465,036 4,373,250,690 3,988,465,036 4,373,250,690

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Capital commitments in relation to Property
and Equipment
Approved and contracted for 41,646,103 30,828,227 41,646,103 30,828,227
Approved but not contracted for - 8,524,439 - 8,524,439
Sub total 41,646,103 39,352,665 41,646,103 39,352,665
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible
assets
Approved and contracted for - - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - - -
Sub total - - - -
Total 41,646,103 39,352,665 41,646,103 39,352,665
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year - - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - = -
Later than 5 years - - = -
Sub total - - 5 -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year - - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - - -
Later than 5 years - - - -
Sub total - - 5 -

Grand total - - - -

4.28.5: Litigation

Claims & litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Bank
has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of
loss reasonably estimated, the Bank makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on
its financial standing. At the year end, the Bank had no major unresolved claims other than following:

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Claims on Institutions but not accepted by bank
- Unpaid guarantee claims 260,545,410 128,873,763 260,545,410 128,873,763
Contingent liabilities on income tax
- Assessment pending with tax settlement commission 228,600,105 228,600,105 228,600,105 228,600,105
489,145,515 357,473,868 489,145,515 357,473,868

4.29 Interest income

Interest income includes interest income received from loans and advances and investment. Interest income is calculated
using effective interest rate on accrual basis. Loan Documentation fees received hasn’t been considered while calculating
effective interest income from loans and advances assuming its impact to be immaterial.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents is interest income on money at call and short notice, interbank lending and
placement with original maturity less than 90 days. Interest on Placement with bank and financial institution is interest income
on placement with original maturity greater than 90 days. Interest income on securities is interest income on T-Bills, NRB
bonds and foreign bonds.

28th Annual Report | 91



HBL

FWi'ﬁr:';é‘ﬂi“;yan Bank Ltd.

Interest income on loans and advances to customer is interest on all loans and advances excluding interest received on staff
loan and interest received on loans and advances provided to microfinance which has been categorized separately. Interest
income from loans and advances to customer has been recognized on accrual basis expect for interest on loan and advances
which has been past dues for more than 90 days. For such outstanding, the collateral value is compared to the total outstanding.
If the outstanding amount is within the collateral value then the interest income is recognized, if not then accrual of such
interest income is suspended. However, if the loan is in past dues for more than 12 months then the accrual of interest income
is suspended irrespective of the value of collateral.

10% rebate on interest paid in the month of Chaitra 2076 and 2% rebate on interest rate for the last quarter of this fiscal year
has been duly provided to borrowers under relief package announced by Nepal Rastra Bank in relation to current pandemic.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalent 110,168,733 119,459,361 110,168,733 119,459,361
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 8,740,430 - 8,740,430
Placement with bank and financial institutions 81,243,690 111,175,427 81,243,690 111,175,427
Loan and advances to bank and financial 537,246,701 433,395,630 537,246,701 433,395,630
institutions

Loans and advances to customers 10,639,119,655 10,363,680,542 10,639,137,573 10,363,680,542
Investment securities 740,984,729 523,537,450 733,050,706 523,537,450
Loan and advances to staff 78,145,925 65,426,210 78,145,925 65,426,210

Other

Total interest income

4.30 Interest expense

12,186,909,433

11,625,415,050

12,178,993,328 11,625,415,050

Interest expense has been recognized using applicable interest rate. Interest expense on deposit from customer represents
all interest expense on deposits except deposits from bank and financial institution which has been categorized separately
as interest expense on due to bank and financial institution. Interest expense on due to Nepal Rastra Bank is interest expense
on refinancing received from Nepal Rastra Bank. Interest expense on debt securities is interest expense on bond.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Due to bank and financial institutions 11,111,787 22,214,163 11,111,787 22,214,163
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 6,597,868 5,793,379 6,597,868 5,793,379
Deposits from customers 7,052,194,768 6,507,842,802 7,062,749,108 6,518,066,664
Borrowing - - - -
Debt securities issued 276,831,005 48,000,000 276,831,005 48,000,000
Subordinated liabilities - - - -
Other - - - -
Total interest expense 7,346,735,428 6,583,850,344 7,357,289,768 6,594,074,206
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4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission income are income earned by the entity while providing services to the customer which includes fees
and commission earned for issuance and renewal of cards, loan administration fees, remittance fees, commission on issuing
letter of credit and guarantee contract, locker rental, purchase of bills, etc. Such fees and commission are recognized when
services are rendered.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loan administration fees 167,592,272 146,322,980 167,592,272 146,322,980
Service fees - - - -
Consortium fees 59,455,176 11,650,000 59,455,176 11,650,000
Commitment fees - - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 22,450,244 25,905,343 22,450,244 25,905,343
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 151,082,839 238,839,936 151,082,839 238,839,936
Prepayment and swap fees - - - -
Investment banking fees 80,890 - - -
Asset management fees 134,707 - - -
Brokerage fees - - - -
Remittance fees 74,306,248 104,423,463 74,306,248 104,423,463
Commission on letter of credit 67,856,628 79,216,965 67,856,628 79,216,965
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 86,926,301 81,416,436 86,926,301 81,416,436
Commission on share underwriting/issue 907,121 - - -
Locker rental 21,320,359 21,016,466 21,320,359 21,016,466
Other fees and commission income 95,945,950 112,514,891 97,853,951 112,514,891
Total Fees & Commission Income 748,058,735 821,306,480 748,844,018 821,306,480

4.32 Fees and commission expense

Fees and commission expense incurred by the bank and its subsidiary are recognized when the services are availed by the
bank. Such fees and commission expense are included mainly on account of card issuance charges, communication charges,
and other registration fees and charges.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
ATM management fees - - - -
Card network fees and charges 34,652,351 32,961,180 34,652,351 32,961,180
Guarantee commission - - - -
Brokerage - - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 9,284,761 9,891,205 9,284,761 9,891,205
Remittance fees and commission - - - -
Other fees and commission expense 18,166,099 22,213,221 18,166,099 22,213,221
Total Fees & Commission Expense 62,103,211 65,065,606 62,103,211 65,065,606
Net Fees & Commission Income 685,955,524 756,240,874 686,740,807 756,240,874

4.33 Net trading income

The bank doesn’t hold any trading assets. The trading income represents the income from foreign currency transaction only.
However, subsidiary of the bank himalayan capital does hold trading assets to gain short term benefits. Gain or loss on foreign
currency transaction are measured as difference on the carrying amount of the currency held to the disposed amount.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Changes in fair value of trading assets (128,737) - - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets 1,248,311 - - -
Interest income on trading assets - - = -
Dividend income on trading assets - - = -
Gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction 764,970,517 718,157,896 764,970,517 718,157,896
Other - - - -
Net Trading Income 766,090,091 718,157,896 764,970,517 718,157,896

4.34 Other operating income

Other operating income are income earned by the entity while carrying out its normal transaction. These income are recognized
when right to receive such income arises. Income on revaluation of foreign currency is recognized on mark to market basis.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Foreign exchange revaluation gain (13,981,797) 17,679,126 (13,981,797) 17,679,126
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - - - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - - -
Dividend on equity instruments 2,213,374 4,819,299 58,917,751 63,317,521
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (3,204,422) 1,453,636 (3,204,422) 1,453,636
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - 2,878,906 - 2,878,906
Operating lease income - - - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - - -
Other 103,663,729 89,746,388 103,663,729 89,787,421
Total 88,690,884 116,577,355 145,395,261 175,116,610

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Impairment is the reduction in the value of the asset. The bank assess impiarment of loan and advances at the end of each
reporting period under both incurred loss model as per NAS 39 and loan loss provision as prescribe by NRB. Impairment
provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed by the regulator
and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by ICAN.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077  Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls 2,295,582 11,452,080 2,295,582 11,452,080
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 303,332,913 122,170,019 303,332,913 122,170,019
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and - - - -
financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - - -
Total 305,628,495 133,622,099 305,628,495 133,622,099
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4.36 Personnel Expense

Personnel expense includes both short term and long term employee expense of the bank. Short term expenses such as
salary, allowance, insurance, provident fund are recognized when they become due on actual basis. Long term employee
expense include gratuity and leave encashment expenses. Long term benefits are paid to employee when they are separated
from the bank. Such benefits are evaluated using actuarial valution technique as advised by an actuary. Staff bonus is provided
as per the statutory requirement.

Finance expense under NFRS is the notional expense incurred by the bank while providing staff loan at below market rate
of interest. For recognizing benefit provided by the bank to the employee by providing loans and advances at below market
rate of interest staff loan is valuated at fair market value and the difference between the loan amount and fair market value is
amortized as finance expense on staff loan over the loan period.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Salary 406,505,849 373,761,846 406,505,849 373,761,846
Allowances 541,915,092 516,983,812 541,915,092 516,983,812
Gratuity Expense 90,420,552 85,820,270 90,420,552 85,820,270
Provident fund 33,228,901 31,935,813 33,228,901 31,935,813
Uniform 12,100,000 11,000,000 12,100,000 11,000,000
Training & development expense 18,651,256 11,099,233 18,651,256 11,099,233
Leave encashment 49,186,277 72,156,082 49,186,277 72,156,082
Medical - - - -
Insurance 27,163,556 25,343,196 27,163,556 25,343,196
Employees incentive 18,190,016 18,733,015 18,190,016 18,733,015
Cash-settled share-based payments - - - -
Pension expense - - - -
Finance expense under NFRS 36,764,370 29,253,737 36,764,370 29,253,737
Other expenses related to staff 21,622,785 25,020,768 21,622,785 25,020,768
Subtotal 1,255,748,654 1,201,107,772 1,255,748,654 1,201,107,772
Employees bonus 395,376,223 437,017,844 395,376,223 437,017,844
Grand total 1,651,124,877 1,638,125,616 1,651,124,877 1,638,125,616

* The total leave encashment expense shown in the above schedule includes encashment of accumulated sick leave above
120 days and accumulated annual leave above 120 days apart from the leave expense as per actuarial valuation. The leave
encashment expense for the year as per actuarial valuation is Rs 23,028,876.

4.37 Other operating expense

Operating expense are incurred on day to day basis for conducting the normal activities of the bank. Expense are recognized

on accrual basis.

However, operating lease expense has been recognized on straight line method considering all the incremental expense
through the period of the rental agreement as per NAS 17 leases of Nepal Financial reporting Standard.

Fees paid under management contract in case of subsidiary has been shown under other operating expense.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directors’ fee 1,860,500 1,377,000 1,777,000 1,377,000
Directors’ expense 3,994,012 7,582,088 3,980,339 7,582,088
Auditors’ remuneration 2,350,400 2,197,850 2,260,000 2,113,100
Other audit related expense - - - -
Professional and legal expense 41,560,436 33,084,421 27,427,483 33,033,971
Office administration expense 462,395,830 451,456,368 461,290,087 451,405,309
Operating lease expense 267,274,314 228,130,543 267,274,314 228,130,543
Operating expense of investment properties - - - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 47,666,793 5,320,899 47,666,793 5,320,899
Onerous lease provisions - - - -
Other 60,136,350 70,917,893 58,495,095 67,735,653
Total 887,238,635 800,067,062 870,171,111 796,698,563
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The Rental expense of the year under accrual basis is Rs. 229,149,590. Additional rental expense amounting 38,124,724 has
been recognized under SLM basis for operating lease rental recognition

Details of directors expenses are as follows:

Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs.

Orientation / Refresher Training Expenses 638,947 3,310,106

Travelling Expenses 509,303 1,137,936

Newspaper & Communication Expenses 2,432,665 2,661,285

Insurance Expenses 121,126 158,896

Miscellaneous Expenses 278,298 313,865

Total 3,980,339 7,582,088

4.37.1 Office Administration Expense
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Water and Electricity 30,622,894 30,941,431 30,613,558 30,941,431
Repair and Maintenance 109,477,547 102,136,862 109,469,232 102,136,862
a) Building 1,289,951 3,292,488 1,281,636 3,292,488
b) Vehicle 2,245,259 2,032,169 2,245,259 2,032,169
c) Computer and Accessories - - - -
d) Office equipment and furniture - - - -
c) Other 105,942,337 96,812,205 105,942,337 96,812,205
Insurance 20,737,843 18,458,292 20,699,180 18,458,292
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 40,397,819 39,834,105 40,297,584 39,834,105
Printing and stationery 26,823,516 30,235,317 26,602,731 30,235,317
Newspaper, books and journals 599,972 612,243 579,022 612,243
Advertisement 53,983,778 49,279,263 53,461,921 49,252 577
Donation - - - -
Security Expense 74,021,297 68,058,023 74,021,297 68,058,023
Deposit and Loan Guarantee Premium 32,918,484 32,845,768 32,918,484 32,845,768
Travel allowance and expenses 27,313,975 27,276,579 27,301,850 27,276,579
Entertainment 564,136 2,075,390 564,136 2,075,390
Annual/ Special General meeting Expense 2,160,396 2,487,775 2,160,396 2,487,775
Other 42,774,173 47,215,319 42,600,696 47,190,947
a) Fuel, Janitorial and cleaning 39,788,847 44,961,697 39,670,142 44,961,697
b) Expense for Capital ltems 992,412 1,117,731 937,639 1,117,731
c) Other 1,992,914 1,135,891 1,992,915 1,111,519
Total 462,395,830 451,456,368 461,290,087 451,405,309

4.38 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation has been recognized under written down value method for tangible fixed assets and amortization has been
recognized for intangible assets under straight line method basis. The details on the policy adopted by the bank for the
depreciation and amortization has been disclosed in note 3.7.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Depreciation on property and equipment 145,457,923 135,818,008 144,187,078 135,813,773
Depreciation on investment property - - 5 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 36,316,356 34,384,442 36,133,449 34,384,442
Total 181,774,279 170,202,450 180,320,527 170,198,215
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4.39 Non operating income

Any income received which is beyond the normal income generating activities of the bank has been recognized as non operating

income.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Recovery of written off loan 84,464,875 8,743,336 84,464,875 8,743,336
Share of the profit of investment in associate 227,010,017 267,770,684 - -
Other income 313,611,794 40,583,928 313,611,794 40,583,928
Total 625,086,686 317,097,948 398,076,669 49,327,264

Share of the profit of the associate is the differential net worth of the associates during the current year.
Other income represents write back of provision against assets amounting Rs. 313,611,794 in the current fiscal year.

4.40 Non operating expense

Any expense incurred for activities which is beyond the normal activities of the bank has been recognized as non operating

expense
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loan write offs 226,279,325 540,418 226,279,325 540,418
Redundancy provision - - - -
Expense of restructuring - - - -
Other expense 24,976,479 57,837,977 24,976,479 57,837,977
Total 251,255,804 58,378,395 251,255,804 58,378,395
Other Expense represents additional retirement benefits paid amounting Rs. 24,976,479.
Details of Loan Written off is as follows
Type of Recovery steps Amount . . Basis of Approving
Loan taken Written off Security Detail Valuation Authority
Credit Follow-up through 6,774,233 Personal guarantee of N/A BM/DGM/
Card telephonic calls, emails and cardholders SGM/CEO/
Loan written notices served to the MCC
card holder. 35 days notice
published in newspaper and
blacklisted.
OD/DLN/ = Written notices served for 219,505,092 Motgage of Land & Building/ = 70% Market Value MCC
TR/CCC/ | several times, 35 days notice, Registration of the vehicle in | and 30% Government
HPL/FTL = Auction notice published in the name of the bank/Plant ' Value, Purchase
newspaper and blacklisted. & Machinery, Stock duly price/Invoice price
Case filed at Debt Recovery insured in bank’s favor/Pari-
Tribunal (DRT). passu arrangement on
Current Assets
Total 226,279,325
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4.41 Income tax expense

Income Tax has been assessed as per Income Tax Act, which is shown as current year tax. Adjustment for prior period is the
income tax of previous year that was assessed after the closing of books of previous year.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current tax expense
Current year 979,250,534 1,188,315,640 979,250,534 1,186,058,888
Adjustments for prior years - 6,064,553 - 6,064,553
979,250,534 1,194,380,193 979,250,534 1,192,123,441
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (7,500,706) (22,760,671) (7,587,244) (22,811,316)
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense 971,749,828 1,171,619,522 971,663,290 1,169,312,125
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2077 Asar 2076 Asar 2077 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Profit before tax 3,558,386,000  3,933,160,600
Tax amount at the rate of 30% 1,067,515,800 1,179,948,180
Add: Tax effect of expenses that aren't 17,413,981 206,521,814

deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt items
Add/ Less: Tax effect on other items
Total income tax expense

Effective tax rate

(17,366,100)
(95,900,391)
971,663,290

27.31%

(200,411,106)
(16,746,763)
1,169,312,125
29.73%
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DISCLOSURE & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Risk management

HBL realizes the ever-increasing need for a comprehensive risk assessment & management system at all levels of
operation and has therefore instilled a strong control & monitoring environment within the bank. An effective internal
control system is in place which defines rights, authorities, responsibilities and accountability at different levels of
management with detailed working procedures laid out for various operational aspects. A systematic assessment process
has been developed to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Capital Adequacy Framework based on Basel
accord as well as other statutory and regulatory requirements. The entire risk assessment and internal control system
is reviewed periodically by Senior Management to address loopholes and risk areas identified in the course of operation
as well as those considered potential given the dynamic environment of the banking industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument, fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and advances to customers/other banks and
investments in debt securities. In addition to the direct funding exposure, the bank would also be exposed to credit risk
on account of indirect liabilities such as letters of credit, guarantees etc.

Credit Risk at HBL is being managed through implementation of Credit Policy Guidelines, Credit Policy Manual, and
specific Product Documents developed for each banking product. These policies, manual & product documents lay
down the basic framework for credit appraisal & authority for approval. A comprehensive credit risk assessment process
has been defined which involves individual appraisal of all borrowers including corporate, institutional & SME borrowers
against stipulated criteria & also encompasses assignment of systematic credit ratings. The Risk Management Department
reviews and assesses the risk associated with individual credit proposals above the set threshold and also reviews &
appraises the overall loan portfolio of the bank with respect to risk concentration, market scenario & recommends
initiatives to be taken for improved risk management. The Board of Directors on its own & also through Risk Management
Committee under coordination of a non-executive director further reviews the overall credit & other risk in the light of
the current market conditions & management analysis & issues necessary instructions including amendments to policies
in order to strengthen the bank’s credit portfolio. The credit administration function of the bank is centralized, and all
approved facilities are implemented only after scrutiny of related security and other documents and after reasonable
assurance of compliance with approving conditions.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to adverse
movements in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commaodity prices and equity prices. This
risk is continuously monitored by the Treasury Department under direct supervision of the Senior Executives. A
comprehensive treasury manual is in place which defines procedures & authority aimed at regulating the related activities
including setting up of various risk limits & risk hedging. Net open position of all currencies is prepared on daily basis
and reported to the management for necessary review & risk / return assessment. Periodic reporting is done to Assets
Liabilities Management Committee which reviews the associated risks and returns, assesses the impact of the exposure
on the bank’s capital adequacy position and makes periodic reports to the Board of Directors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. Due to this risk, the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. With the objective of limiting this risk, the management
has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of continuously
managing assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has
developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment
of expected cash flows and ensuring availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding
at any given time.

Operational and Other Risk

Operational risk is perceived as a significant potential risk faced by financial institutions. In order to ensure proper
management of the risk, the bank has developed and implemented different manuals like Cash & Customer Service
Manual, Bills and Remittance Manual, Fund Transfer Manual, SMS and Internet Banking Manual, IT Policy, IT Security
Policy, Document Retention Manual, Record & Reconciliation Manual etc. which define procedural matters for banking
activities at different levels. Compliance to these policy & procedures, prudential guidelines and other directives and
circulars issued by Nepal Rastra Bank is monitored at branch level by KYC Officers & centrally by Compliance & Internal
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Control Department. The Executive Operating Officer reporting to General Manager compiles data related to operational
risks observed at branch level and takes necessary precautionary and remedial steps as may be required. The senior
management working as a team further analyses these data, assesses risk and related internal control systems and
takes corrective & preventive actions to remedy any breakdown in the system. The bank is PCIDSS certified, which
provides additional assurance as regards the effectiveness and adequacy of control system relating to card operations
in the bank. The management is strongly committed towards maintaining a strong internal control system at all levels
of banking activities in order to mitigate operational risks to the maximum possible extent.

The scope of Risk Management Department has been expanded to include oversight of overall operational risk
management in the bank which is achieved through systematic reports obtained independently at defined intervals from
various levels of management.

In addition to the credit, operational and market risk, the bank gives due significance to legal, reputation & other risks
associated with banking activities as well. These risks are identified, assessed and monitored at regular intervals by
the senior management. The Board of Directors also reviews these risks on the basis of feedback from the management
& the prevailing market scenario & issue necessary instructions to the management. An effective MIS is in place which
provides factual data on all risks, including credit, operational and market exposures which is instrumental in analysis
& management of the risks & assessment of capital requirement.

A strong & effective internal control system continuously in operation is inevitable for smooth functioning of any
organization. Management assumes the primary responsibility of ensuring that all control systems are in place & are
functioning as perceived within the bank. Compliance & Internal Control Department at Head Office monitors the day
to day functioning of the bank through off-site & on-site reviews with particular emphasis on proper functioning of internal
control systems and adherence to prudential & regulatory requirements & makes reporting to the senior management
along with recommendations for necessary corrective actions. Internal Audit function within the bank is fully independent
with the department directly reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board. Any lapses or non-compliance with the
stipulated control systems as identified during the audit of various business units, branches & departments is reported
to the Audit Committee & the Board where upon instructions are issued to the management to remedy such reported
instances.

5.2 Capital management

(i) Qualitative disclosures

The Bank aims to have a comfortable capital position with adequate cushion over the regulatory requirement. Higher
dependency is placed on equity which is being strengthened by the Bank’s policy of distribution of dividend in both
script and cash form. The Bank further issues subordinated bonds on need basis as a part of Tier Il capital. The
capital base position is monitored on a daily basis to avoid any unwanted capital constraints and to ensure that
required capital is there to pave way for the planned growth.

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

Capital structure and capital adequacy as per BASEL Il

1. Tier 1 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:

S. No. Particulars Amount

Core Capital (Tier 1) 16,210,310,670
1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 9,372,281,428
2 Statutory General Reserves 4,254,234,117
3 Retained Earnings 296,690,592
4 Current Year Profit/(Loss) 2,200,071,795
5 Debenture Redemption Reserve 367,014,857
6 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 200,000,000
7 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 79,982,119
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2. Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components

S. No. Particulars Amount
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 4,312,770,217
1 Subordinated Term Debt 2,569,104,000
2 General loan loss provision 1,703,395,265
3 Exchange Equalization Reserve 39,056,093
4 Investment Adjustment Reserve 1,214,859
5 Other Reserves -

3. Information on Subordinated Term Debt:

Bond Issued HBL Bond 2083
Outstanding amount 2,569,104,000
Interest rate 10%

Maturity Date Bhadra 2083
Interest payment Half yearly basis
Tenor 7 years

Amount to be reckoned as capital 367,014,857

4. Total deductions from Capital: N/a

5. Total Qualifying Capital

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 16,210,310,670
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 4,312,770,217
Total 20,523,080,887

6. Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.76%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 14.89%

2. Risk exposures

1. Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risks

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES Amount
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 122,107,180,476
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 8,133,807,004
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 670,465,969

Adjustment under Pillar I
Add 5% of gross income for operational risk 3,036,449,152
Add: 3% of total RWE for overall risk 3,927,343,603
Total Risk Weighted Exposures @ 137,875,246,204
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2. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 12 categories of Credit Risk

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Claims on government & central bank 384,722,017
2 Claims on other official entities 664,899,333
3 Claims on banks 3,892,216,589
4 Claims on domestic corporate and securities firms 83,313,152,479
5 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 6,652,302,965
6 Claims secured by residential properties 3,293,047,655
7 Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,900,494,627
8 Past due claims 956,041,650
9 High risk claims 5,815,564,294
10 Lending against securities (Bonds and Share) 1,603,361,465
11 Other assets 4,374,724,258
12 Off balance sheet items 9,256,653,143
Total 122,107,180,476

3. Total Risk Weighted Exposures calculation table:

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Total Risk Weighted Exposure 137,875,246,204
2 Total Core Capital Fund (Tier 1) 16,210,310,670
3 Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 & Tier 2) 20,523,080,887
4 Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.76%
5 Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 14.89%

4. Amount of NPA

S. No. Loan Classification Gross Amount Provision Held Net NPA
1 Restructured Loan 17,608,153 3,379,842 14,228,311
2 Substandard Loan 300,851,150 75,212,787 225,638,362
3 Doubtful Loan 383,849,947 191,924,973 191,924,973
4 Loss Loan 381,272,352 381,272,352 -
Total 1,083,581,602 651,789,955 431,791,647

5. NPA Ratios

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 1.01%

Net NPA to Net Advances: 0.41%

(iii) Compliance with external requirement

The Bank through-out the reporting period has fully complied with the capital requirements imposed by the Regulator
for 'A' class commercial banks operating in the country.
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The accounting policies
describe the manner each category of financial instrument is measured and also the manner in which income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized.

5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General information

a) The Bank has branches operating in different provinces across the country. All the branches are full scope
branches and are entitled to carry out all types of transactions that the Bank is licensed for. The Bank has
therefore identified reporting segments on the basis of provinces in which the branches are located. However,
two independent profit centers, namely, Remittance Center and Card Center have been reported as a separate
segment along with the Corporate Office.

b) Following are the main products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues:
a) Loan and Advances
b) Letter of Credit
c) Guarantee

d

-~

Remittance

f) Locker Service
g) Bills purchase and discounting

(

(

(

(d)

(e) Card service
(

(

(h) Collection service
(

i) Other ancillary services

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Province Head Office
Particulars and other Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 profit center
(a) Revenues from external
customers 904,088,500 1,097,870,974 7,463,426,177 374,097,035 1,805,670,926 10,751,473 224,849,285 2,355,525,423 14,236,279,793
(b) Intersegment revenues 34,334,822 35,526,813 2,976,939,108 99,331,160 68,582,921 8,918,866 13,756,077 61,649,763 3,299,039,530
(c) Net Revenue 938,423,322 1,133,397,787 10,440,365,285 473,428,195 1,874,253,847 19,670,339 238,605,362 2,417,175,186 17,535,319,323
(d) Interest revenue 871,911,335 1,034,181,194  6,993,421,680 360,226,690 1,743,544,450 7,763,631 211,742,310 956,202,038 12,178,993,328
(e) Interest expense 202,908,554 199,415,351 5,605,576,395 208,161,283 275,454,696 5,711,359 15,858,553 844,203,577 7,357,289,768
(f) Net interest revenue 669,002,781 834,765,843 1,387,845,285 152,065,407 1,468,089,754 2,052,272 195,883,757 111,998,461 4,821,703,560
(9) Depreciation and amortisation 9,342,242 5,159,156 26,740,897 3,420,171 6,160,790 1,189,043 2,094,147 126,214,081 180,320,527
(h) Segment profit /(loss) 213,575,459 259,321,794 2,688,497,813 170,070,376 481,330,819 (1,227,145) 32,822,806 109,370,300 3,953,762,222
(i) Entity's interest in the profit or - - - - - - - - R
loss of associates accounted
for using equity method
() Other material non-cash items: - - - - - - - - -
(k) Impairment of assets 194,760,751 130,530,165 1,712,411,515 56,351,628 221,520,935 984,090 | 25,646,861 23,679,275 2,365,885,220
() Segment assets 5,107,491,153  4,141,583,091 112,279,132,817 4,893,932,223 7,153,418,373 307,973,915 656,341,706 21,345,045,705 155,884,918,983
(m) Segment liabilities 5,107,491,153 ' 4,141,583,091 112,279,132,817 4,893,932,223 7,153,418,373 307,973,915 656,341,706 21,345,045,705 155,884,918,983
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3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments.

Each segment account is prepared on accrual basis and transactions between segments are conducted at a
pre-determined price.

(b) Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments profits or losses and the entity's
profit or loss before income tax.

Profit or losses of the reportable segments before staff bonus are measured on accrual basis based on NFRS.
Inter-segmental revenue is accordingly set off against related inter-segmental expenses in order to arrive at the
entity's profit or loss.

(c) Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' assets and the entity's asset.
There are no difference between the reportable segment assets and entity's assets.

(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported
segment profit or loss.

None.
(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

All allocations are symmetrically done.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

1. Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments 17,535,319,323
Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues (3,299,039,530)
Entity’s revenues 14,236,279,793

2. Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 3,953,762,222
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts:

Staff bonus (395,376,222)

Profit before income tax

3. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Other assets

Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets

3,558,386,000

155,884,918,983

155,884,918,983

4. Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 155,884,918,983
Other liabilities
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity’s liabilities 155,884,918,983
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5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1 (b) above:

(@) Loan and Advances 11,481,577,647

(b) | Letter of Credit 67,856,628

(c) Guarantee 86,926,301

(d) Remittance 74,306,248

(e) | Card service 151,082,839

i) Locker Service 21,320,359

(g) | Bills purchase and discounting 3,242,316

(h) Collection service 39,320,067

(i) Other ancillary services 2,310,647,388
Total 14,236,279,793

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas:

(a) | Domestic 14,236,279,793
Province 1 904,088,500
Province 2 1,097,870,974
Province 3 9,818,951,600
Province 4 374,097,035
Province 5 1,805,670,926
Province 6 10,751,473
Province 7 224,849,285

(b) Foreign -
Total 14,236,279,793

7. Information about major customers

The customers of the Bank do not individually / singly contribute 10% or more of the entity’s revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

As per NFRS 2, an entity shall recognize the goods or services received or acquired in a share-based payment transaction
when it obtains the goods or as the services are received. Corresponding increase in equity is recognized if the goods
or services are received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or a liability if the goods or services are
acquired in a cash-settled share-based payment transaction.

The Bank has not entered into any share options and share based payment transaction till date.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

The Bank creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events that probably require an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. The details regarding the contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 4.28.

5.7 Related parties disclosures

The Bank carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties that fall within the ambit of related
parties as defined in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures). The pricing applicable to such
transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Bank and is comparable with what is applied
to transactions between the Bank and its unrelated customers.
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By virtue of its shareholding of over 10 per cent in the Bank and representation in the Board of Directors, Habib Bank
Limited and Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh are related parties to the Bank. Transactions with related parties during the
reporting period is given below:

Transaction with Habib Bank Ltd.

Particulars This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Deposits with Habib Bank - -
Due from Habib Bank 6,292,081 3,191,260

Placements in Habib bank
Due to Habib bank

Total

For the Year Ended

1,202,500,000

1,208,792,081

1,096,500,000

1,099,691,260

Interest Received 46,747,544 35,422,851
Total 46,747,544 35,422,851
Cash Dividend Paid 204,486,140 175,103,429
Total 204,486,140 175,103,429

Transaction with Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh

Particulars This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Rental Expense paid 60,386,727 59,679,730
Cash Dividend paid 143,140,298 122,572,400
Total 203,527,025 182,252,130

Transaction with Parent, Subsidiary and Other Affiliates

The Bank doesn't have an identifiable parent. It has a wholly owned subsidiary named Himalayan Capital Limited and
5 associates:

- RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

- Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
- Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

- Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

- Smart Choice Technologies Limited

Transaction with Subsidiary

Transaction with Subsidiary This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Deposit of Subsidiary in the bank 167,427,809 202,510,008
Total 167,427,809 202,510,008

106 | 28th Annual Report



e &%

fafas
imalayan Bank Ltd.

HBL

Transaction with Associate

Transaction with Associate This Year Ending Immediate Previous
Year Ending

Loans and Advances provided to associate under deprived
sector lending

RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 600,145,808 602,934,247
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 597,167,978 597,171,740
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 652,073,061 644,556,661
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 533,743,018 609,545,057
2,383,129,865 2,454,207,704

Interest Income received from associate
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 62,754,705 50,619,014
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 63,144,428 53,341,475
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 67,638,865 63,118,845
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 66,263,832 59,849,164
259,801,830 226,928,498

* L oans and advances to associate stated above are inclusive of AIR.

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

According to Nepal Accounting Standard NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosure) Key Management Personnel (KMP) are
those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Such KMPs
include the Board of Directors and Senior Executives of the Bank. Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel are
summarized below:

Transaction with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Board of Directors
Benefits 4,330,790 4,197,181
Total 4,330,790 4,197,181
Chief Executive Officer
Short term employee benefits 16,559,677 15,600,000
Other Benefits 1,373,887 1,323,277
Retirement benefits - -
Total 17,933,564 16,923,277
Key Management Executives
Short term employee benefits 80,544,087 86,569,127
Other Benefits 767,421 1,035,725
Retirement benefits 11,175,294 -
Total 81,311,508 87,604,852

Key Management Executives are entitled to Gratuity and Leave Encashment Facilities as post-employment benefits as
per the Employees' Service Bye-Laws of the Bank. They are further provided with subsidized loans and advances and
vehicle facility. However, where such executives are employed under a contract the compensation is determined by
terms of such contract. The Senior General Manager, an expat on secondment deputation from Habib Bank Limited,
is further provided with a full furnished residence. Retirement benefits is the payment given to Senior General Manager
on completion of his deputation.
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Transaction with HBL Retirement Fund

Bank has established an approved retirement fund which has been identified as related party to the bank.

Transaction with HBL Retirement Fund This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Deposit with the Bank 1,099,704,403 1,282,713,570
Interest Paid by the Bank 111,220,934 142,856,895

5.8 Merger and acquisition

The Bank has not undergone any merger or acquisition during the reporting period.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

There are no unconsolidated entities.

5.10 Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting
date and the date when the Financial Statements are authorized for issue.

No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the financial
statements, other than the following:
Proposed Dividends

The Board of Directors have recommended 14% stock dividend and 6% cash dividend for the financial year. This dividend
proposal is to be approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 10 (Events after the Reporting Period) this proposed final dividend has
not been recognised as liability as at year end date.
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COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2076/77

Statement of Financial Position As per As per Variance

unaudited Audited )
Financial Financial Reasons for Variance

Assets Statement Statement Inamount | In %

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,231,138,781 7,231,138,781 - -

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,407,815,815  12,407,815,815 - -

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 6,342,173,790  6,342,173,790 - -

Derivative financial instruments 115,621,217 115,621,217 - -

Other trading assets - - -

Loans & Advances to BFIs 4,998,075,266 = 4,998,075,266 - -

Loans & Advances to Customers 101,653,351,477 ' 101,728,467,164 75,115,687 = 0.07% Adjustment of rebate and impairment after audit

Investment Securities 18,241,666,700 = 18,241,666,700 - -

Current Tax Assets 370,482,555 351,495,017 (18,987,538)  -5.13% | Post audit adjustment in tax liabilty

Investments in subsidiaries 200,000,000 200,000,000 -

Investments in Associates 195,785,700 195,785,700 - -

Investment Property 379,802,213 379,802,213 - -

Property & Equipment 2,411,792,115 = 2,411,792,114 - -

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 151,101,486 151,101,486 - -

Deferred Tax Assets - - -

Other Assets 1,125,816,007 1,129,983,720 4,167,713 0.37%  Post audit adjustment

Total Assets 155,824,623,122  155,884,918,983

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 6,595,869,088 6,595,869,088 - -

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 155,736,786 155,736,786 - -

Derivative financial instruments 75,543,132 75,543,132 - -

Deposits from Customers 125,264,381,691 ' 125,264,381,690 - -

Borrowing - - - -

Current Tax Liabilities - - - -

Provisions - - - -

Deferred Tax Liabilities 95,965,899 95,895,829 (70,070) -0.07% | Restatement of value of assets/liability

Other Liabilities 3,528,167,949 = 3,544,577,238 16,409,289 0.47%  Post audit adjustment

Debt Securities Issued 2,563,661,608  2,563,661,608 - -

Subordinated Liabilities - - -

Total Liabilities 138,279,326,153 138,295,665,371

Equity

Share Capital 9,372,281,428  9,372,281,428 - -

Share Premium - - - -

Retained Earnings 2,503,056,611 = 2,496,762,387  (6,294,224) -0.25%

Reserves 5,669,958,930 = 5,720,209,797 50,250,867 0.89%

Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders 17,545,296,969 17,589,253,612

Non Controlling Interest

Total Equity 17,545,296,969  17,589,253,612

Total Liabilities and Equity 155,824,623,122 155,884,918,983
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COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2076/77
As pgr As Per Variance
Statement of Profit or Loss ur.'a"d".ed I.\Ud"e.d Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial In amount In%
Statement Statement
Interest income 12,113,633,075 = 12,178,993,328 65,360,253 = 0.54% | Adjustment of rebate after audit
Interest expense 7,356,986,062 7,357,289,768 303,706  0.00%  Post Year End Adjustment
Net interest income 4,756,647,013  4,821,703,560 - -
Fee and commission income 748,673,058 748,844,018 170,960 0.02% ' Regrouping/Adjustment after audit
Fee and commission expense 61,910,867 62,103,211 192,344 0.31% Regrouping/Adjustment after audit
Net fee and commission income 686,762,191 686,740,807 - -
Net interest, fee and commission income 5,443,409,204  5,508,444,367 - -
Net Trading Income 764,970,517 764,970,517 - -
Other operating income 146,297,101 145,395,261 (901,840) | -0.62% | Post Audit Adjustment
Total operating income 6,354,676,822 6,418,810,145 - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other 303,100,929 305,628,495 2,527,566 0.83% Post Audit Adjustment
losses
Net operating income 6,051,575,893 6,113,181,650 - -
Operating expense
Personnel Expenses 1,644,236,551  1,651,124,877 6,888,326 0.42% ganoenoretuiory Bonus amount, ofher post
Other Operating Expenses 878,180,800 870,171,111 (8,009,689) -0.91% ' Reversal of excess provision of expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation 180,320,527 180,320,527 - -
Operating profit 3,348,838,015  3,411,565,135 -
Non operating income 398,076,669 398,076,669 - -
Non operating expense 251,580,510 251,255,804 (324,706) | -0.13% ' Post Audit Adjustment
Profit before income tax 3,495,334,174 3,558,386,000 - -
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax 960,262,996 979,250,534 18,987,538 1.98%  Post Year End adjustment in tax liability
Deferred Tax (7,517,174) (7,587,244) (70,070) = 0.93%  Post Year End adjustments
Profit for the period 2,542,588,352 2,586,722,710 44,134,358 1.74%
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Profit or loss for the year 2,542,588,352 2,586,722,710 - -
Other comprehensive income 30,340,938 30,241,418 (99,520)  -0.3%  Increasein defined benefit obligation expense due to
Total comprehensive income for the period 2,572,929,290 2,616,964,128
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HIMALAYAN BANK LIMITED

CSR initiative decisions equivalent to and or above Rs. 50,000/- in line with provision of
clause # 105 sub-clause 1 (c) of the prevailing Company Act 2063.

$.NO. PAYMENT DETAILS AMOUNT
1 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO KALIKA MARG UPABHOKTA SAMITI FOR DECORATIVE LIGHT AT KALIKASTHAN TEMPLE 50,000/-
2 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO NEW CHILDREN'S HOME 50,000/-
3 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO ORPHAN AND HELPLESS CHILDREN DEV. ASSO. NEPAL 50,000/-
4| FIANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO NAVALEEVAN PAROPAKAR SAMAJ FOR CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDING FOR OLD AGED HOMELES 50,000/-
5 | FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO KATHMANDU ZEAL ROUND TABLE 22 FOR FREEDOM THROUGH EDUCATION PROJECT FOR SCHOOL 50,000/-
IN REMOTE AREAS
6 EIH@II\:I)%IS{‘_ ASSISTANCE TO ROUND TABLE NEPAL FUND RAISING PROGRAM FOR SOCIALWORK TO ENHANCE EDUCATION OF 50,000/-
7 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PURCHASE 13 SET PLANT AND COMPOUND BAR FOR DHADING DISTRICT HOSPITAL 50,000/-
8  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RIO CARNIVAL 2020| EVENT TO PROMOTE NEPAL AS ONE OF THE PREFERED TOURIST DESTINATION 60,000/-
9 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO DHANGADI SUB METROPOLITAN OFFICE TO HELP STROM VICTIMS 100,000/-
10 | FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO FARIYA CENTER PVT LTD FOR ORGANIZAING MS NEPAL CURVY BEAUTY N BEYOND EVENT 100,000/-
11 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO BARAKH GANA HILE FOR COMPUTER, PRINTER AND SPORTS MATERIALS 100,000/-
12 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO SANGAM MAHARJAN CANCER PATIENT 100,000/-
13 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR TREE PLANTATION WITH IRON GUARD AT KMC WARD 12 FOOTPATH 100,000/~
14 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO JANTA AADHARBHUT SCHOOL FOR REPAIR AND MAINTENCE 100,000/-
15 | FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO BIRGUNJ METROPOLITAN OFFICE FOR CORONA CRISIS MANAGEMENT 100,000/-
16 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO REPAIR WATER TREATMENT AND UF FILTERATION AT KANTI CHILDREN HOSPITAL 142,945/-
17 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PROVIDE RELIF MATERIAL AT RAPTISONARI DUE TO COVID-19 155,600/-
18 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PAINTING AND DECORATION OF TERIDEVI TEMPLE FOR DASHAIN 2076 190,600/~
19 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR KINDER OLYMPICS 2076 TO PROVIDE EQUAL LEARNING OPPORTUNITY FOR MARGINALIZED AND 200,000/-
DESTITUTE CHILDREN OF COMMUNITY
20  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RECONSTRUCT MULTIPURPOSE COMMUNITY HALL THROUGH COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT AND 250,000/-
SPORT DEVELOPMENT CENTER.
21 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE TO PURCHASE BOOKS AND MAINTAIN LIBRARY 300,000/-
22 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO CONSTRUCT DOCTORS REST LOUNGE AT NEPAL EYE HOSPITAL TRIPURESHWOR 576,437/-
23 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PROMOTE KHOLAU BANK KHATA CAMPAIGN TO NEPAL BANKER'S ASSOCIATION 400,000/-
24 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO SHREE BHIMSEN MANDIR REBUILDING COMMITTEE TO RENOVATE SHRI BHIMSEN TEMPLE 500,000/-
25  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO SIDDHI MEMORIAL FOUNDATION TO PURCHASE LAUNDRY PLANT AND PROVIDE OPD TICKET BOOKS 821,485/-
FOR THE USE OF HOSPITAL N SENIOR CITIZEN HOME
26 |F3I|'_\I/./\-\(';\IECSI,AL ASSISTANT TO TEACH FOR NEPAL (TFN) FOR TEACHING SERVICE TO COMMUNITY SCHOOL AT VARIOUS RURAL 500,000/-
27  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO MADAN BHANDARI TRUST FOR MAINTENANCE OF GARDEN AND CONSERVATION OF SURROUNDING 500,000/-
ENVIRONMENT
28  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO NEPALESE ARMY WIVES ASSOSIATION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF WELL EQUIPED BIRTHING CENTRE, 551,000/-
MATERNITY WARD AT TALKOT VDC, BAJHANG
29  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO DEVELOP SHORT MOVIES OF SOCIAL AWARENESS AND FINANCIAL AWARENESS FOR COMMUNITY 1,017,000/-
IN PARTNERSHIP WITH COMMUNITY POILCE
30  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PURCHASE HEMODIALYSIS MACHINE FOR LUMBINI MEDICAL COLLEGE 1,400,000/-
31 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PURCHASE VENTILATOR TO NARAYANI SUB REGIONAL HOSPITAL 2,825,000/-
32 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO PURCHASE PHACO MACHINE FOR DR. RAM PRASAD POKHREL EYE HOSPITAL, DHANKUTA 3,500,000/-
33 FUND TRANSFERRED TO GOVERNMENT CORONA FUND AS INSTRUCTED BY NRB 5,970,117/-
34 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO KATHMANDU VALLEY PRESERVATION TRUST FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF TEMPLES DESTROYEDBY 10,000,000/~
EARTHQUAKE
35  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO CORONA VIRUS CONTROL AND TREATMENT FUND ESTABLISHED BY NEPAL GOVERNMENT. 12,500,000/-

TOTAL ~ 43,410,184/-
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Province-wise CSR Expenses in FY: 2076/77

S. No. Province Amount

1 Province 1 3,489,200
2 Province 2 2,934,960
3 Bagmati 38,800,185
4 Gandaki 111,450
5 Lumbini 1,630,100
6 Karnali -
7 Sudurpachhim 700,898

Total 47,666,793

Sector-wise CSR Expenses in FY: 2076/77

S. No. Province Amount

1 Health 9,786,367
2 Education 1,285,000
3 Disaster Management/Natural Calamities 29,375,615
4 Financial Literacy/Social Awareness 1,026,960
5 Environmental Protection 750,000
6 Preservation of Culture and Heritage 110,301
7 Infrastructure Development 250,000
8 Open your bank account 400,200
9 Public Security 106,500
10 Tourism 94,300
11 Other (Orphanage/Old Aged Home/Blind/Sports) 4,481,550

Total 47,666,793
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HIMALAYAN
CSR ACTIVITIES

1. Phaco Machine for Dr. Ram Pd Pokhrel Eye Hospital Dhankuta

2. Doctor’s Lounge at Nepal Eye Hospital, Tripureshwor

3. Financial Support to Teach for Mepal

4. Hemodialysis Machine at Lumbini Madical College Palpa

5. Relief Material for COVID-19 affected locals at Raptisonari

B CCTV Donation to Shree Rangvenkates Muktinarayan Temple at Baglung
7. Support to Purchase Laundary Plant at Siddhi Memorial Foundation

B. Maintenance of Shree Janata Community School at Dharan

9, Water Treatment Plant at Kanti Hospital

12, Ventilator for Marayani Sub-regional hospital_Birgunj.
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HIMALAYAN BANK LIMITED, Corporate Office

Kamaladi, PO. Box: 20590, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 977-1-4227749

Fax: 977-1-4222800, E-mail: himal@himalayanbank.com
Website: www.himalayanbank.com, SWIFT: HIMANPKA

Province 1

Biratnagar Branch
Shanihat Mainroad, Biratnagar, Morang
Tel: 021-524653, 534944

Birtamod Branch
Sanischarya Road, Birtamod, Jhapa
Tel: 023-545611

Damak Branch
Highway, Damak, Jhapa
Tel: 023-585291

Dharan Branch
Putali Line, Sunsari
Tel: 025-528966, 528967

Hile Branch
Bhojpur Road, Hile, Dhankuta
Tel: 026-540628, 540629

Itahari Branch
Dharan Road, Itahari, Sunsari
Tel: 025-587041, 587042

Madi Branch
Okharbote-4, Sankhuwasabha
Tel: 01-6201751

Baragadi Branch
Khowpawa-3, Bara
Tel: 01-6201363

Bardibas Branch
Mohotari, Nepal
Tel: 044-550161, 550162

Birgunj Branch
Mahabir Road, Birgunj, Parsa
Tel: 051-524678, 527504

Janakpur Branch
Janakpurdham
Tel: 041-590240

Lahan Branch
Lahan, Siraha, Ward #1
Tel: 033-561684, 561685

Nijgadh Branch
Nijgadh, Bara, Ward #9
Tel: 053-540262, 540392

Parsauni Branch
Parsauni-5, Bara
Tel.: 053-620000

Subarna Branch
Kabahigoth-6, Bara
Tel: 01-6201366

Banepa Branch
Tindobato, Banepa, Kavrepalanchowk
Tel: 011-664734

Bahrabise Branch
Barhabise Bazar, Sindhupalchowk
Tel: 011-489290

Battisputali Branch
Battisputali, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4484990

Betrawati Branch
Laharepauwa, Betrawati, Rasuwa
Tel: 010-681343, 412001

Bhaisepati
Lalitpur, Ekantakuna Tikabhairab Road
01-5906306

Bhaktapur Branch
Sukuldhoka, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6617493, 6616092

Bharatpur Branch
Pulchowk, Chitwan
Tel: 056-571474, 572225

Chabahil Branch
Chuchepati, Chabahil, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5210045

Dhading Branch
Dhadingbesi, Dhading
Tel: 010-521110

Dillibazar Branch
Siddhibhawan, Charkhaladda, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4431658

Gaurishanker Branch
Suri-5, Dolakha
Tel: 01-6201748

Hetauda Branch
Main Road, Hetauda, Makawanpur
Tel: 057-525877,522899

Kalanki Branch
Kalanki Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5234762, 5235038

Kaushaltar Branch
Gatthaghar, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6639564

Khurkot Branch
Golanjor-7, Sindhuli
Tel: 01-6201749

Maharajgunj Branch
Maharajgunj, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4425183, 4424292

Myagang Branch
Deurali-3, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201463

New Baneshwor Branch
New Baneshwor Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4785583,4784859

New Road Branch
Bishal Bazar Complex, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4243107, 4224787

Parsa Branch
Naya Road, Parsa, Chitwan
Tel.: 056-583628

Patan Branch
Pulchowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5010584, 5010593

Samakhushi Branch
Gangabu, Samakhushi, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4354663

Satdobato Branch
Satdobato Chowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5151945,

Shorakhutte Branch
Shorakhutte Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4389035

Sukedhara Branch
Kathmandu 4, Sukedhara
Tel: 01-4015081

Swoyambhu Branch
APF Welfare Plaza, Swoyambhu, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4033798, 4285461

Tandi Branch
Sauraha Chowk, Tandi, Chitwan
Tel: 056-560750

Tarkeshwor Branch
Dansingh-1, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201365

Teku Branch
Kathmandu Business Park, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4104572, 4104687

Thamel Branch

Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Building
Thamel, Kathmandu

Tel: 4227745, 4227756

Trishuli Branch
Battar, Trishuli, Nuwakot
Tel: 010-561696

Baglung Branch
Jeep Park, Baglung
Tel: 068-522690

Gorkha Branch
Bus Park, Gorkha
Tel: 064-421520

Kawasoti Branch
Shabhapati Chowk-5, Nawalparasi
Tel: 078-541040

Pokhara Branch
New Road, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-538907, 540230

Ram Bazar Branch
Amarsingh Chowk, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-430301

Bhairahawa Branch
PrahariTole, Siddharthanagar,
Rupandehi

Tel: 071-526945, 524395

Butwal Branch
Traffic Chowk, Butwal, Rupandehi
Tel: 071-551016, 551017

Card Centre
Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Tel: 01-4227749
Toll Free No.: 16-600-112-000

Global FI & Remittance Centre

Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Tel: 01-4227749, 4250354

Toll Free No.: 16-600-111-000

Outside Country

Himalayan Bank Limited- Kuala Lumpur

Representative Office

2nd Floor, Wisma Maran, 28 Medan Pasar
50050 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Tel: +603 2022 3664

Ghorahi Branch
New Road, Ghorahi, Dang
Tel: 082-562901

Kohalpur Branch

Kohalpur Municipality, ward #11
Kohalpur, Banke

Tel: 081-542146/ 48

Lamahi Branch
Lamahi Bus Park, Dang
Tel: 082-540842, 540843

Nepalgunj Branch
Dhamboji, Nepalgunj, Banke
Tel: 081-411290

Palpa Branch
Silkhan Tole, Tansen, Palpa
Tel: 075-522641, 520095

Raptisonari Branch
Samshergunj-8, Banke
Tel: 081-400089, 400091

Tulsipur
Dang, Kha Line
082-523545/523546

Kumakha Branch
Marmaparikada, Ragechaur-8, Salyan
Tel: 01-6201752

Salyan Branch
Srinagar, Salyan, Tel: 088-400012

Surkhet Branch

Ward #3, Chinal Pul, Jumla Road
Birendranagar, Surkhet

Tel: 083-523902/524101

Sudar Paschim

Chhededaha Branch
Dogadi Bazaar-5, Bajura
Tel: 01-6201754

Dhangadi Branch
Ratopool, Dhangadi, Kailali
Tel: 091-520202

Jagannath
Bajura, Juddi
Tel: 01-6201749

Lamki Branch
Tikapur road, Kailali
Tel: 091-540513

Swamikartik
Bajura, Suijiula
Tel: 01-6201753

Extensition Counter

Maharajgunj Branch
TU Teaching Hospital
Tel: 01-4425183

Gangalal Ext. Counter
Shahid Gangalal National Heart Center
Bansbari, Tel: 01-4425183

Trishuli District Hospital Ext Counter
Trishuli District Hospital
Tel: 010-561696

Lumbini Medical College Ext Counter
Lumbini Medical College
Palpa, Tel: 075-522641
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Available on

SECURED | RELIABLE
CONVENIENT | FAST

The power of banking in your own hand

Features:

Self-Registration Fund Transfer Utility Payment
[Within and inter-bank) (NEA, NTC/NCELL, DTH, ISP)

ANYTIME

*Conditions apply

» Account Status view [Deposit and Loan)
» Notification for Debit/Credit transactions

Himalayan Bank Mobile Banking App.

Download Hi-MB, and instantly your bank is
in your mobile phone. Mow banking would be
mare convenient and easier. wherever you
are, we are always with you!

IET

E- rnall hi- mhﬁﬁhrmalayanhanh.mm HBL @Hlmaléyan Bank Lid.
Web: www.himalayanbank.com




Himalayan Bank Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu
Ph. Mo 4246218/19, P.O. Box.: 20590

SWIFT: HIMANPKA

www.himalayanbank.com



